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JOINT AND SEVERAL RECEIVERS
Mr. Liu Yiu Keung Stephen

Mr. Yen Ching Wai David

Ms. Koo Chi Sum

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr. Liu Yiu Keung Stephen (Chairman)
(appointed on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Yen Ching Wai David (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 9 March 2015)
Ms. Koo Chi Sum (appointed on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Cheung Shing (resigned on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Ma Shui Cheong (resigned on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Chen Liang (resigned on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Panagiotis Pavlakis
(retired on 6 January 2015,
appointed on 7 January 2015 and
resigned on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Peter Pannu
(removed on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Chan Shun Wah (removed on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Cheung Kwai Nang
(suspended on 9 March 2015 and
subsequently resigned on 11 March 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Yuk Ming (appointed on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Law Pui Cheung (appointed on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Lai Hin Wing Henry Stephen
(appointed on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson
(suspended on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Gao Shi Kui (resigned on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Liu Enxue (retired on 6 January 2015,
appointed on 7 January 2015 and
resigned on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Li Hanguo (retired on 6 January 2015,
appointed on 7 January 2015 and
resigned on 9 March 2015)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Wong Wai Kwok (resigned on 18 May 2015)

Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael (appointed on 16 June 2015)
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Cheung Yuk Ming (Chairman)
(appointed on 9 March 2015)

Mr. Law Pui Cheung (appointed on 9 March 2015)

Mr. Lai Hin Wing Henry Stephen
(appointed on 9 March 2015)

Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson
(suspended on 9 March 2015)

Mr. Gao Shi Kui (resigned on 9 March 2015)

Mr. Liu Enxue (retired on 6 January 2015,
appointed on 7 January 2015 and
resigned on 9 March 2015)

Mr. Li Hanguo (retired on 6 January 2015,
appointed on 7 January 2015 and
resigned on 9 March 2015)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Lai Hin Wing Henry Stephen (Chairman)
(appointed on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Law Pui Cheung (appointed on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Cheung Yuk Ming (appointed on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson
(suspended on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Gao Shi Kui (resigned on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Liu Enxue (retired on 6 January 2015,
appointed on 7 January 2015 and
resigned on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Li Hanguo (retired on 6 January 2015,
appointed on 7 January 2015 and
resigned on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Chan Shun Wah (removed on 7 January 2015)
Mr. Cheung Shing (appointed on 7 January 2015 and
resigned on 9 March 2015)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Law Pui Cheung (Chairman)
(appointed on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Cheung Yuk Ming (appointed on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Lai Hin Wing Henry Stephen
(appointed on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson
(suspended on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Gao Shi Kui (resigned on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Liu Enxue (retired on 6 January 2015,
appointed on 7 January 2015 and
resigned on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Li Hanguo (retired on 6 January 2015,
appointed on 7 January 2015 and
resigned on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Chan Shun Wah (removed on 7 January 2015)
Mr. Cheung Shing (appointed on 7 January 2015 and
resigned on 9 March 2015)
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG

KONG

Room 1200, 12th Floor,

Wing On Centre,

111 Connaught Road Central,
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square,

Hutchins Drive,

P.O. Box 2681,

Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman lIslands

SHARE REGISTRAR

Principal share registrar and transfer office
Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

P.O. Box 2681,

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,

Cayman lIslands

Hong Kong Branch share registrar
Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/birminghamint/

AUDITOR

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Unit 701, 7/F., Citicorp Centre
18 Whitfield Road

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS TO THE COMPANY

As to Hong Kong law
Angela Ho & Associates

As to Cayman lIslands law
Conyers Dill & Pearman, Cayman
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LEGAL ADVISERS TO THE JOINT AND
SEVERAL RECEIVERS

As to Hong Kong law

K&L Gates, Solicitors

As to Cayman Islands law
Ritch & Conolly

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

STOCK CODE
2309
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ER®E

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Birmingham
International Holdings Limited (Receivers Appointed) (the
“Company”), | am pleased to report the audited consolidated
results of the Company together with its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2015.

PERFORMANCE AND REVIEW

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$253.58
million for the year ended 30 June 2015, representing an increase
of 0.14% comparing to the turnover of approximately HK$253.23
million in the year ended 30 June 2014. The Group also recorded
a loss of approximately HK$7.9 million in the current year
comparing to a loss of approximately HK$140 million (restated) in
the last year.

BUSINESS PROSPECT AND LOOKING
FORWARD

The Company is engaged in investment holding. The Company,
through its major subsidiary, is principally engaged in the
operation of a professional football club.

Trading in the shares of the Company was halted since 10:21 a.m.
on 4 December 2014 at the request of the Company.

On 16 February 2015, the Company upon the advice of its
legal representative proceeded to apply to the Court for the
appointment of receivers for the Company to take all appropriate
actions to protect the Company and to preserve its assets, to
carry on the business of the Company and to do all such other
things reasonably necessary for the purpose of preserving the
value of the Company’s assets and its business. Deputy High
Court Judge Wilson Chan of the Court of First Instance heard the
Company’s application on 16 February 2015 and granted on the
same day an order (the “Receivership Order”) that Messrs. Liu
Yiu Keung Stephen, Yen Ching Wai David and Koo Chi Sum, all
of Ernst & Young Transactions Limited of 62nd Floor, One Island
East, 18 Westlands Road, Island East, Hong Kong, be appointed
as the Joint and Several Receivers (the “Receivers”) of the
Company.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT,
EERE

BUSINESS PROSPECT AND LOOKING
FORWARD (Continued)

The Receivers together with the Board are taking necessary
actions and steps to fulfil the conditions for resumption of
trading of the Company’s shares as set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 18 February 2015.

As announced on 25 June 2015, the Receivers executed with
Trillion Trophy Asia Limited (“Trillion Trophy”) an exclusivity
agreement. As at the date of this Report, the Receivers are
negotiating with Trillion Trophy on the possible subscription and/
or purchase of shares in the Company and/or its major operating
subsidiary.

As announced on 30 June 2015, the Company entered into a
loan facility agreement with Trillion Trophy. The Receivers are of
the opinion that the liquidity and financial resources of the Group
are significantly enhanced since the loan facility has become
available.

The Company will keep the shareholders and potential investors
informed of the progress as and when appropriate.

Mr. Liu Yiu Keung Stephen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 September 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR TN

RESULTS

For the year ended 30 June 2015, the Group’s consolidated
turnover remained stable at HK$254 million (2014 restated:
HK$253 million), while the Group’s net loss amounted to HK$4
million, representing an improvement of HK$157 million compared
to the Group’s restated net loss of HK$161 million for the year
ended 30 June 2014. Such increase was mainly due to the net
effect of the following:

o An increase in other income of HK$23 million largely
coming from player insurance proceeds received.

o A write back of accrued donation payable to a charity fund
in China which is no longer valid.

o A proposed settlement with a vendor which is a third party
not related to the Group;

o Improved margin of HK$89 million arising from normal
operating activities from the professional football operation
in the United Kingdom (“U.K.”) primarily due to planned
reduction in cost base offset by a reduction in sales of
players registration.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

The company is engaged in investment holding. The principal
activity of its major subsidiary is the operation of a professional
football club.

PROFESSIONAL FOOTBALL OPERATION

BUSINESS

Birmingham City Plc. (“BCP”) is a company domiciled in the U.K.
The principal activity of BCP and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “BCP Group”) is the operation of a professional
football club in the U.K. The revenue streams of the BCP Group
are comprised of (i) match receipts which consisted of season and
match day tickets; (ii) television broadcasting revenue, including
distribution from the Football Association and Championship
broadcasting agreements, cup competitions and revenue from
the local media; and (iii) commercial income which comprised
of sponsorship income, corporate hospitality, merchandising,
conference and banqueting and other sundry revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR T

PROFESSIONAL FOOTBALL OPERATION

BUSINESS (continued)

The 2014/15 season started disappointingly with the football club
languishing in the bottom three places of the Championship. This
prompted a change of manager in October 2014. Performance
of the football team and attendances had immediately improved.
Under the new leadership, the football club finished 10th in the
Championship for the 2014/15 season. The Birmingham City
Football Club Academy (the “Academy”) maintains its category 2
status under the Elite Player Performance Plan.

For the year ended 30 June 2015, BCP Group contributed HK$254
million to the Group’s turnover (2014: HK$253 million) and HK$16
million in profit (2014: HK$92 million loss). Such improvement
in result was mainly driven by better performance of football
players during the reporting period and conservative spending, in
particular, staff costs.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 30 June
2015 (2014: Nil), nor has any dividend been proposed since the
end of reporting date.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The current ratio (current assets to current liabilities) of the Group
as at 30 June 2015 was 44.1% (2014 restated: 45.5%) and the
gearing ratio (borrowings in long term portion to equity and non-
current liabilities) of the Group as at 30 June 2015 was 30.5%
(2014 restated: 1.0%). The ratio of total liabilities to total assets of
the Group as at 30 June 2015 was 88.6% (2014 restated: 95.8%).

As at 30 June 2015, the cash and bank balances of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$59 million, representing a
decrease of 59% compared to HK$143 million as at 30 June 2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR TN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources (continued)

As announced on 30 June 2015, the Company entered into a
loan facility agreement with Trillion Trophy, being a potential
offeror of the Company. The agreement covers a drawdown of
HK$9,813,600 as security for the loan or bank facilities granted by
HSBC in the U.K. to Birmingham City Football Club Plc. (“BCFC”)
and further loans to be made up to a maximum aggregate amount
of HK$153,000,000 (collectively referred to as the “Loans”). The
Loans bear interest at a rate of 8% per annum, maturing in 18
months but extendable for another 18 months providing certain
conditions are satisfied. The liquidity and the financial resources
of the Group are significantly enhanced since the loan facility has
become available.

As at 30 June 2015, the borrowings (including current portion
and long term portion) of the Group amounted to HK$184 million
(2014 restated: HK$299 million). These comprised of non-bank
borrowings in Hong Kong which includes HK$43 million drew
down from Trillion Trophy.

PLEDGE OF GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 30 June 2015, the Loans from Trillion Trophy were secured
by (i) a first fixed legal charge over the property owned by BCFC
with a carrying value of approximately GBP19.6 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$239 million); (ii) a first floating charge over
all the assets, goodwill, undertaking and uncalled capital, both
present and future granted or to be granted by BCFC; and (iii) a
first fixed charge over all book and other debts, both present and
future granted or to be granted by BCFC.

As a result of the Loans form Trillion Trophy, BCFC’s bank loan
was repaid in full.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE DM

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION
For the year ended 30 June 2015, the Group had entered into the
following continuing connected transaction:

(1)

On 22 September 2009, Mr. Peter Pannu who is a former
executive Director of the Company during the period
from 19 September 2012 to 9 March 2015 and Asia
Rays Limited (“Asia Rays”) which is wholly owned by
Mr. Peter Pannu, entered into a consultancy agreement
with the Company (the “Consultancy Agreement”) for
the provision of consultancy services to the Group on
a monthly fee of HK$310,000 tax free for a term of five
years commencing from 1 October 2009 to 30 September
2014. The consultancy fee was amended to GBP65,000
per month commencing on 1 July 2011. On 28 December
2011, a deed of variation was entered with Asia Rays and
the monthly consultancy fee was amended to HK$400,000
effective from 1 January 2012. Details of the terms of the
Consultancy Agreement are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 23 April 2013.

Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”), the Consultancy Agreement
was constructed as a continuing connected transaction.
During the year ended 30 June 2015, consultancy fees
of approximately HK$1,200,000 (2014: HK$4,800,000),
housing allowance of approximately HK$Nil (2014:
HK$800,000) and reimbursement of tax of approximately
HKS$NIl (2014: HK$523,754) were paid to Asia Rays.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR TN

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

(continued)

The existing independent non-executive Directors reviewed
the continuing connected transaction under the Consultancy
Agreement. However, since the Company’s legal proceedings
in connection with the Consultancy Agreement has not yet been
concluded, the existing independent non-executive Directors
are unable to confirm whether the relevant continuing connected
transaction had been entered into were:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
2. on the normal commercial terms or better; and
3. according to the agreement governing them on terms

that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company’s shareholders as a whole.

As announced on 15 July 2015, the Board commenced legal
proceedings against Mr. Yeung Ka Sing (“Mr. Yeung”), a
substantial shareholder and a former executive Director of the
Company, who resigned on 4 February 2014, Asia Rays and
Amazing Top International Enterprises Limited (“Amazing Top”)
in the High Court of Hong Kong on 13 July 2015 claiming for loss
and damages suffered by the Group as a result of Mr. Yeung's
breaches of fiduciary duties whilst serving as a director of the
Company and BCFC including, among others, the entering of
the Consultancy Agreement without authority and his causing
(or permitting to be caused) the Company and BCFC to make
wrongful payments.

As required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transaction in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its letter containing
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transaction set out above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules as follows:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR T

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

(continued)

The continuing connected transaction was signed by Mr. Yeung.
There was no resolution by the then Board of the Company
to authorise Mr. Yeung to enter into the continuing connected
transaction. On 16 February 2015, the Receivers were appointed
pursuant to the Receivership Order. The Receivers of the
Company resolved to institute legal proceedings against Mr.
Yeung and other parties including Asia Rays in connection with
alleged breaches of fiduciary duties of Mr. Yeung, including
entering into the Consultancy Agreement with Asia Rays and Mr.
Peter Pannu (the “Legal Proceedings”).

Based on the foregoing, in respect of the continuing connected
transaction:

a. The continuing connected transaction has not been
approved by the Company’s then Board of Directors.

b. Except for the Legal Proceedings, nothing has come to
auditor’s attention that causes them to believe that the
continued connected transaction were not entered into,
in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing such transactions.

C. Except for the Legal Proceedings, with respect to the
aggregate amount of the continuing connected transaction,
nothing has come to the auditor’'s attention that causes
them to believe that the continuing connected transaction
has exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company and
disclosed in the announcement dated 14 November 2014
made by the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other continuing connected
transaction, which require disclosure in the annual report in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk is with the Group’s
operation in the U.K. and most of which transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in Great British Pounds (“GBP”). The
Group does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge its
foreign currency risks.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESNSREBAEBE

Mr. Liu Yiu Keung Stephen (“Mr. Stephen Liu”) appointed as an
executive Director and the chairman of the Board, all with effect
from 9 March 2015.

Mr. Stephen Liu, aged 56, has been working with Ernst & Young
for over 30 years since 1983. Mr. Stephen Liu is currently one of
the Receivers of the Company pursuant to the Receivership Order.
Mr. Stephen Liu was admitted as an associate member of the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in 1987 and
as an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries in 1994.

Mr. Yen Ching Wai David (“Mr. Yen”) appointed as an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company, and as
directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company, all with effect
from 9 March 2015.

Mr. Yen, aged 44, has been working with Ernst & Young for
over 20 years. Mr. Yen is currently one of the joint and several
Receivers of the Company pursuant to the Receivership Order.
Mr. Yen is also a member of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since 2003, has been a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
since 2003 and a fellow member of the HKICPA since 2011.

Ms. Koo Chi Sum (“Ms. Koo”) appointed as an executive Director
with effect from 9 March 2015.

Ms. Koo, aged 40, has been working with Ernst & Young for
over 15 years. Ms. Koo is currently one of the Receivers of
the Company pursuant to the Receivership Order. Ms. Koo
was admitted as a Certified practising Accountant by Certified
Practising Accountants Australia in 2003 and as fellow member by
the HKICPA in 2010.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OFDIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEANEEE

Mr. Cheung Yuk Ming (“Mr. Cheung”) appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of audit
committee of the Company, and a member of each of the
nomination committee and remuneration committee of the
Company, all with effect from 9 March 2015.

Mr. Cheung, aged 62, holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration awarded by the University of East Asia, Macau in
1987 and completed courses on construction management, New
York bar exam, development and financing in the mining industry,
petroleum economics and petroleum risk management conducted
by the China University of Geosciences in Beijing, the School
of Law of the Pace University in New York, the Institute of Civil
Engineering Surveyors (United Kingdom) and other associations.
Mr. Cheung is a member of the HKICPA, the Hong Kong Institute
of Bankers, the Institute of Internal Auditors (United States),
the Institute of Chartered Accountants (England and Wales),
the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators (United Kingdom), the
Institute of Construction Claims Practitioners and the Hong Kong
Securities Institute. Mr. Cheung is also a member of several trade
associations including the Construction Management Association
of America, the Society of Construction Law (Hong Kong) and the
Canadian Institute of Mining, Metallurgy and Petroleum.

Since January 2005, Mr. Cheung has been appointed as an
executive Director of Lawrence CPA Limited. Mr. Cheung had
been appointed as an independent non-executive Director of
Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd., a state-owned enterprise,
a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 1618) since 2009 and retired
together with four other directors in October 2014 on change
of the board membership under Chinese corporate governance
regulation.

Mr. Cheung had been an independent non-executive Director of
EPI (Holdings) Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 689) since June 2011 and retired in July 2013 on
change of executive management of the company. From March
2010 up to the present, Mr. Cheung has been an independent
non-executive Director of TravelSky Technology Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 696), a state-
owned enterprise, and as the chairman of its audit committee and
member of its remuneration and evaluation committee.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESNSREBAEBE

Mr. Law Pui Cheung (“Mr. Law”), appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the remuneration committee
of the Company, and a member of each of the audit committee and
nomination committee, all with effect from 9 March 2015.

Mr. Law, aged 59, was admitted as a fellow member of the
HKICPA in 1993, a fellow member of The Chartered Association of
Certified Accountants in 1990, a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors in 2011, an associate member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales (the “ICAEW”) in
2005 and subsequently as a fellow member of the ICAEW in 2015,
a member of Macau Society of Certified Practising Accountants
in 1995 and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute in 2015. Mr. Law is currently a holder of
practicing certificate issued by the HKICPA. Mr. Law currently
is a partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Co., a fully-fledged and well
established practicing certified public accountants firm which has
been operated for over 50 years in Hong Kong.

Mr. Lai Hin Wing Henry Stephen (“Mr. Henry Lai”), appointed
as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Company, and a member of each of
the audit committee and remuneration committee of the Company,
all with effect from 9 March 2015.

Mr. Henry Lai, aged 58, is a solicitor and partner of P. C. Woo
& Co. practising in the legal field for more than 30 years; notary
public; China-Appointed Attesting Officer; civil celebrant of
marriages; member of the Securities and Futures Appeals Tribunal,
member of the Notaries Public Disciplinary Tribunal Panel; member
of the Consents Committee of The Law Society of Hong Kong;
member of the Association of China-Appointed Attesting Officers
Limited Disciplinary Tribunal Panel; Director of Ebenezer School &
Home for the Visually Impaired; chairman of the Appeal Tribunal
Panel (Buildings); non-executive Director of Winfull Group Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
183); member of Hunan Committee of Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference; director of the Hong Kong Hunan
Chamber of Commerce Limited; executive council member of the
Hunan Overseas Friendship Association; past chairman (2008
— 2009) and current vice chairman of the Hong Kong Chinese
Orchestra Limited; and honorary legal advisor of the Youth Diabetes
Action; honorary legal advisor of Stroke Fund; Chairman, fellow
member and chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee of
the Hong Kong Institute of Directors; legal advisor of Qi Chuang
(Hong Kong) Social Services Network; member of the Hong Kong
Professionals and Senior Executives Association and member of the
Audit Committee of Hang Seng Management College.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEE

A E

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The existing board of directors of the Company (the “Current
Board”) believes that good corporate governance is crucial to
improve the efficiency and performance of the Group and to
safeguard the interest of the shareholders.

According to the Receivers’ understanding, the former board of
directors of the Company (the “Former Board”) were split into
two camps. The Company suffered a management deadlock
prior to the appointment of the Receivers. Except for Mr. Wong
Ka Chun Carson (whose director’s duties have been suspended
by the Receivers since 9 March 2015), the rest of the members
of the Former Board had either resigned or were removed by the
Receivers pursuant to powers granted under the Receivership
Order.

In view the fact that the Current Board was only formed on 9
March 2015, based on the best information available to them, the
Current Board is unable to confirm that the Company has fully
complied with the applicable code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
(the “CG Code") for the period from 1 July 2014 to 8 March 2015.

The Current Board is however pleased to report compliance
with CG Code provisions for the period from 9 March 2015 to
30 June 2015 with an exception of a deviation from A.4.1 of CG
Code in respect of the service term of independent non-executive
Directors.

A.4.1 of CG code stipulates that non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The Company
deviated from the above code provision as all independent
non-executive Directors were not appointed for specific terms.
However, all independent non-executive Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association. The reason for the deviation is that the
Company believes that its directors ought to be committed
to representing the long term interests of the Company’s
shareholders.

The Current Board is responsible for the Company’s system of
corporate governance and continues to monitor and review the
Company’s corporate governance practices to ensure compliance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERERBRSE

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the full set of the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code
of the conduct for securities transactions by Directors. The
prohibitions on securities dealing and disclosure requirements
in the Model Code apply to specified individuals including the
Group’s senior management and also persons who are privy to
price sensitive information of the Group. Having made specific
enquiry of all existing Directors, the Current Board confirms
that the existing Directors of the Company have complied with
the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions during the year and up to the date of
publication of this Report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The Company has a separate chairman and chief executive
officer. The two positions are assumed by different persons, in
order to ensure that their independence, accountability and power
are clear. Mr. Stephen Liu, one of the Receivers of the Company
and the chairman of the Board, is responsible for the operation
of the Board and the formulation of the Company’s strategies and
policies. Mr. Yen, one of the Receivers of the Company and the
chief executive officer, is responsible for the management of the
Company’s business, the implementation of significant policies,
and the daily operational decision making.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(a) Up to the date of this Report, the Board comprises a total
of seven members including three executive Directors and
four independent non-executive Directors and one of the
independent non-executive Directors’ duties have been
suspended by the Receivers since 9 March 2015. Members
of the Board have different professional and relevant
industry experiences and background so as to bring in
valuable contributions and advice for the development
of the Group’s business. Two of the independent non-
executive Directors are qualified accountants in Hong Kong
and one of them is a qualified lawyer.

As required under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, an
issuer must appoint independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of the board. Rule 3.10A has
been complied with.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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i

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(b)

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive Director (except
for one of the independent non-executive Directors whose
duties have been suspended by the Receivers since 9
March 2015) of their independence to the Group. The
Group considered that all independent non-executive
Directors (except for one of the independent non-executive
directors whose duties have been suspended by the
Receivers since 9 March 2015) meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines. The names of the directors and their respective
biographies are set out on pages 13 to 15 of this Report.

The Current Board holds meetings on a regular basis and
meets on other occasions when a board-level decision on
a particular matter is required. The Board also monitors
and controls financial performance in pursuit of the Group’s
strategic objectives. According to the Company’s records
the Former Board also held meetings on a regular basis.

The Former Board held 38 board meetings and 2 general
meetings during the period from 1 July 2014 to 16 February
2015, the date of the Receivership Order. The Current
Board held 7 board meetings during the period from 9
March 2015 up to the date of this Report.
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TEERERBRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
(d) (Continued)

The names of the Directors during the financial year and
their individual attendance up to the date of this Report are

set out below:

Name of Directors
Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheung Shing
(resigned on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Ma Shui Cheong
(resigned on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Chen Liang
(resigned on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Panagiotis Pavlakis
(retired on 6 January 2015,
appointed on 7 January 2015 and
resigned on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Peter Pannu
(removed on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Chan Shun Wah
(removed on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Cheung Kwai Nang
(suspended on 9 March 2015 and
subsequently resigned on 11 March 2015)
Mr. Liu Yiu Keung Stephen (Chairman)
(appointed on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Yen Ching Wai David (Chief Executive officer)
(appointed on 9 March 2015)
Ms. Koo Chi Sum
(appointed on 9 March 2015)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Gao Shu Kui

(resigned on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Liu Enxue

(retired on 6 January 2015,

appointed on 7 January 2015

and resigned on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Li Hanguo

(retired on 6 January 2015,

appointed on 7 January 2015

and resigned on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson

(suspended on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Cheung Yuk Ming

(appointed on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Law Pui Cheung

(appointed on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Lai Hin Wing Henry Stephen

(appointed on 9 March 2015)
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
TRAINING

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as
well as his responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws, rules
and regulations.

Existing Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the
year ended 30 June 2015, existing Directors have participated in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Current Board established a Nomination Committee which
comprises four independent non-executive Directors namely, Mr.
Lai Hin Wing Henry Stephen, Mr. Cheung Yuk Ming, Mr. Law Pui
Cheung (all appointed on 9 March 2015) and Mr. Wong Ka Chun,
Carson (suspended). Up to the date of this Report, the Nomination
Committee is chaired by Mr. Lai Hin Wing Henry Stephen. The
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have been
reviewed with reference to the Code.

The duties, roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are
as follows:

1. to review the structure, size, composition and (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at
least annually and make recommendations to the Board
on any proposed changes to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

2. to identify and nominate individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships. In identifying suitable individuals, the
Nomination Committee shall consider individuals on merit
against the objective criteria, with due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board;

3. to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and review the independent non-executive
Directors’ annual confirmations on their independence
and make disclosure of its review results in the corporate
governance report of the Company;
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

4.

to regularly review the time required for a director to
perform his responsibilities;

to review the balance between executive and non-
executive directors and the diversity of skills, knowledge
and experience needed on the Board;

to review the leadership and succession needs of the
organisation with a view to ensuring the long term success
of the Group;

to review the Board diversity policy, as appropriate, and
review the measurable objectives that the Board has set for
implementing the Board diversity policy, and the progress
on achieving the objectives; and make disclosure of its
review results in the corporate governance report annually;

to ensure that all Directors offer themselves for re-election
every three years by shareholders; and

to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment or re-designation of directors
and succession planning for directors, in particular the
chairman and the chief executive, taking into account
the Company’s corporate strategy and the mix of skills,

knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the future;

The Nomination Committee (formed by the Former Board) held

3 meetings during the period from 1 July 2014 to 16 February

2015, the date of the Receivership Order. The existing Nomination

Committee held 1 meeting for the period from 9 March 2015 up to

the date of this Report.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Name of members of
Nomination Committee

Mr. Cheung Shing
(appointed 7 January 2015 and
resigned on 9 March 2015)

Mr. Chan Shun Wah
(removed on 7 January 2015)

Mr. Gao Shu Kui
(appointed on 7 January 2015 and
resigned on 9 March 2015)

Mr. Liu Enxue
(retired on 6 January 2015,
appointed on 7 January 2015 and
resigned on 9 March 2015)

Mr. Li Hanguo
(retired on 6 January 2015,
appointed on 7 January 2015 and
resigned on 9 March 2015)

Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson
(suspended on 9 March 2015)

Mr. Lai Hin Wing Henry Stephen
(Chairman)
(appointed on 9 March 2015)

Mr. Cheung Yuk Ming
(appointed on 9 March 2015)

Mr. Law Pui Cheung
(appointed on 9 March 2015)

RBREEZEES®)
SRETHEERIMT -

Number of meetings
attended from 1 July 2014
up to the date of

this Report
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0/1
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Current Board established a Remuneration Committee which
comprises four independent non-executive Directors namely Mr.
Law Pui Cheung, Mr. Cheung Yuk Ming, Mr. Lai Hin Wing Henry
Stephen (all appointed on 9 March 2015) and Mr. Wong Ka Chun,
Carson (suspended). Up to the date of this Report, Mr. Law Pui

Cheung is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of the executive
Directors and the senior management. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure
to ensure that no director or any of his associates will participate
in deciding his own remuneration, which remuneration will be
determined by reference to the performance of the individual and
the Company as well as market practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets annually for
reviewing the remuneration policy and structure and determination
of the annual remuneration packages of the executive Directors
and the senior management and other related matters. The
Remuneration Committee shall consult the Board about these
recommendations on remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The existing executive Directors only receive their remuneration
as the Receivers of the Company pursuant to the Receivership
Order. They do not receive any director fees.

The existing independent non-executive Directors are paid fees in
line with market practice. The Group adopted the following main
principles in determining their remuneration:

— No individual should determine his own remuneration;

— Remuneration should be broadly aligned with companies
with who the Group competes for human resources;

— Remuneration should reflect performance.

The Remuneration Committee (formed by the Former Board) held 2
meetings during the period from 1 July 2014 to 16 February 2015,
the date of the Receivership Order. The existing Remuneration
Committee held 2 meetings during the period from 9 March 2015
up to the date of this Report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY (Continued)

The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Name of members of
Remuneration Committee

Mr. Cheung Shing
(appointed 7 January 2015 and
resigned on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Chan Shun Wah
(removed on 7 January 2015)
Mr. Gao Shu Kui
(resigned on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Liu Enxue
(retired on 6 January 2015,
appointed on 7 January 2015 and
resigned on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Li Hanguo
(retired on 6 January 2015,
appointed on 7 January 2015 and
resigned on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson
(suspended on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Law Pui Cheung (Chairman)
(appointed on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Cheung Yuk Ming
(appointed on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Lai Hin Wing Henry Stephen
(appointed on 9 March 2015)
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises of four independent
non-executive Directors namely Mr. Cheung Yuk Ming, Mr. Law
Pui Cheung, Mr. Lai Hin Wing Henry Stephen (all appointed on 9
March 2015) and Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson (suspended). Up to
the date of this Report, Mr. Cheung Yuk Ming is the chairman of
the Audit Committee.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

— To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the qualified
accountant, compliance officer or external auditors before
submission to the Board;

— To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendation to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of external auditors; and

— To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and associated

procedures.

According to the Company'’s records, the former Audit Committee
held 2 meetings for the period from 1 July 2014 to 16 February
2015, the date of the Receivership Order.

The current Audit Committee held 4 meetings during the period
from 9 March 2015 up to the date of this Report. Meetings
included reviewing the financial results and reports for the year
ended 30 June 2015, financial reporting, compliance procedures,
qualifications raised by the external auditors and the Company’s
internal control system.

EREEE

BIZZ B 2 HENK B BIENR B IENTT
EEREALLE  BHEKRE  BEEKE
(PR _E—RAF=ANBEZA)URE
KA (WE ) - BEARESHE -
REPASLERERZESER -

ERZERIZRAEBRETIIRE

ERMBRELBE  XREXES
BZHEBRERGE - AREE
HOMNEZ B R 2 (EREASLIS
A

— &%V%lﬁfﬁﬁﬁi’éﬁZI{’E CEBE R

FRG AR T BRSNS A BAm 2 BB

HM§%~%E&%%%E%§%@
EEgRhES

— REAARMEREHE - AR
HE R E e BRI E R AR
WIE R B RNE -

REARB ZLHE  AIEERZEEN_-F
—mFEELtA-—HEZZ-RAF=-A+H
(RESBH) BRBITMAGE

BESREEEN - Z—RAE=ANBER
WEABBMRTEAEE  UBHEE
E-—RAFANA=THILEFEZHHEERR
& B EE - ARER  INEZEA TR
EER  URAARZAEZE RS

F# Annual Report 2015

25



26

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEE

A E

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Name of members of

EREEgS )
SRETHEERIMT -

Number of meetings
attended from 1 July 2014
up to the date of

this Report
R-ZZ—NFtA—BEXRRK

Audit Committee FHEEERENS HERHLEHEZERRE
Mr. Gao Shu Kui R

(resigned on 9 March 2015) (R=—ZE—RHFE=AABEHEET) 1/2
Mr. Liu Enxue J'ﬁﬁ‘ﬁﬁi

(retired on 6 January 2015, (RZZE—RF—ABRT -

appointed on 7 January 2015 and RZE—RF—AtBREZER

resigned on 9 March 2015) R-ZZT—RF= ANBET) 1/2
Mr. Li Hanguo TERSE

(retired on 6 January 2015,

(R=ZT—RF—ANBRERE-

appointed on 7 January 2015 and E":iﬁ AF—AtHEZER

resigned on 9 March 2015) R-ZE—RF=ANBEHE) 1/2
Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson ERBLE

(suspended on 9 March 2015) (RZE-—RF=ANBREFEES) 2/2
Mr. Cheung Yuk Ming (Chairman) SREERAEAE(EE)

(appointed on 9 March 2015) (R—ZE—RF=ANBEZT) 4/4
Mr. Law Pui Cheung EHERE

(appointed on 9 March 2015) (R=E—RAF=ANAEZT) 4/4
Mr. Lai Hin Wing Henry Stephen FBRRLR ST

(appointed on 9 March 2015) (RZZE—RF=ANBEZT) 3/4
INTERNAL CONTROLS A [ EE o2
The Current Board together with the support of the Audit BHEIE=erEEZEaernLiET B4
Committee is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal  #EHANIPILHI RS - IREREEZR
control system to safeguard the shareholders’ interest and the  ARAFIHEE o
Company’s assets.
The Company engaged Zhonghui ANDA Risk Services Limited AARIR-_"ZE—HAFENA+=-HEBGELR
on 13 August 2015 as the internal control advisor to perform an 3z g ﬁgﬁﬁgﬁ FEE O SREE PR RS -
internal control review of the Group for the period from 1 July W®R—-—=Z=—pmE+F—HE-—_ZE—HF/)\H

2014 to 31 August 2015 and to assist the Current Board to assess
whether the Groups’ financial reporting procedure and internal
control system are adequate to enable the Company to meet its
obligations under the Listing Rules.

The internal control advisor has identified certain numbers of
internal control issues of the Group. The Current Board and the
Audit Committee have reviewed the preliminary internal control
issues based on the internal control advisor’s preliminary findings.
The Current Board is taking necessary actions and steps to
address those internal control issues.

A follow up review will be performed by the internal control advisor
in November 2015. The final internal control review report will be
filed with the Stock Exchange.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

Since the Receivers’ appointment, the Receivers have taken
control of the day to day management of the Company. The
Receivers obtained financial information of the Company’s
operating subsidiaries regularly and report to the Board on
financial position and prospects of the business of the Group so
as to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the
financial and other information put before the Board for approval.

The existing Directors (except for one of the independent non-
executive Directors whose duties have been suspended by the
Receivers since 9 March 2015) acknowledge their responsibilities
(as set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report) for preparing the
financial statements of the Group that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group. The Current Board is aware
that material uncertainties from the unavailability of future funding
available would raise significant doubt about the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. Having considered that, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, the Directors of the Company are of the opinion
that, the Group should be able to continue as a going concern in
the coming year taking into consideration (i) the facility provided
by Trillion Trophy is sufficient to cover the expenses up to June
2016; (ii) discussion with the Stock Exchange on the restructuring
is underway and (iii) various measures to improve its financial
performance and availability of future funds. The responsibility
of the external auditor is to form an independent opinion, based
on their audit, on those consolidated financial statements
prepared by the Current Board and to report their opinion to the
shareholders of the Company. A statement by the auditor about
their reporting responsibility is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
During the year, the remuneration, paid/payable to the Company’s
external auditors, ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited (“ZHONGHUI
ANDA") and Edwards Chartered Accountants (“Edwards”),
the auditors for BCP and BCFC, subsidiaries of the Company,
respectively, in respect of audit services and non-audit services
for the year ended 30 June 2015 are set out as follows which has
been reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee based on
the scope of their works.

S S A% 2 B B <

RAFEAN  RAGEREBZEZZT—AF A
HETLEitﬁEZ*i%(HEi‘%&?FV%&HW%
i1 B 45 FE - HINBE A% BB BB = = AT AT
EBMERLA(HERE]) KEdwards
Chartered Accountants ([Edwards| * %
NN ) M B A RIBCP R BCFC 9 Bl 2 #% &
M zMeEBEZZE@REIEHER
S RBLE - WEHNIT ¢

Approximately fees paid/payable to

BN BN ZBNER
Services rendered ZHONGHUI ANDA Total
for the group 7 & EiR 4 2 PR A hERE Edwards st
Audit services RER 490,000 530,094 1,020,094
Non-audit services FERRBURTS
— Agreed-upon — BRTTHEERF 90,000 — 90,000
procedures of
interim review
— Review on internal ~ — FH& R EPEIEHIE 300,000 — 300,000
Control System
— Other non-audit — Rt I BR 40,000 — 40,000
services
920,000 530,094 1,450,094
COMPANY SECRETARY AT RE
Mr. Wong Wai Kwok resigned as the company secretary of the FT#R&iAN—_E—RERA+/\BEELAKR
Company on 18 May 2015. Nz RAEIE o
Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael (“Mr. Chan”) was appointed as the [EES T A ([EEE DR S —RHENA
company secretory of the Company on 16 June 2015. According +xHEZITAEKRAR Y AaE @}ﬁt
to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Chan has taken no less than 48 B|& 3295 BAELERBE T —FF
15 hours of relevant professional training during the financial year XHBE=4+H B BFEEEESF }\5@15/]\[}%
ended 30 June 2015. T HEEE R -
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS A% 5 E R

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between shareholders and the Current Board. An
annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year
and at the place as may be determined by the Current Board.
Each general meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall
be called an extraordinary general meeting (‘"EGM”).
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Right to convene extraordinary general meeting

Any one or more members holding at the date of the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company, shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition sent to the Company’s principal office as
set out in the manner below, to require an EGM to be called by
the Current Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2)
months after the deposit of such requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposit it to the Current Board
or the company secretary of the Company at the Company’s
principal place of business at Room 1200, 12/F, Wing On Centre,
111 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong, and such
may consist of several documents in like form, each signed by
one or more requisitionists.

The request will be verified with Company’s branch share
registrars in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the
request is proper and in order, the company secretary of
the Company will ask the Current Board to convene an EGM
by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory
requirements to all registered members. On the contrary, if the
request has been verified is not in order, the shareholders will
be advised of this outcome and accordingly, an EGM will not be
convened as requested. If within twenty one days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition the Current Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisition(s), may convene a meeting
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Current Board shall
be reimbursed by the Company to the requisitionist(s).

The notice period to be given to all registered members for
consideration of the proposal raised by the requisitionist(s)
concerned at the EGM varies according to the nature of the
proposal, as follows:

At least 14 clear days’ notice in writing (and not less than 10
business days) if the proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution of
the Company;

At least 21 clear days’ notice in writing (and not less than 10
business days) if calling for an annual general meeting or the
proposal constitutes a special resolution of the Company in EGM.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERBRE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Current Board.
All enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong or email to
info@bihl.com.hk for the attention of the company secretary.

Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to purpose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman lIslands
Companies Law (2013 Revision). However, shareholders are
requested to follow Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of
Association for including a resolution at an EGM. The requirements
and procedures are set out above. Pursuant to Article 88 of
the Company’s Articles of Association, no person, other than a
director retiring at a meeting, shall, unless recommended by the
directors for election, be eligible for appointment as a director
at any general meeting unless there shall have been lodged
at the head office or at the registration office notice in writing
signed by a shareholder (other than the person to be proposed)
duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which such
notice is given of his intention to propose that person for election
as a director and also notice in writing signed by that person
of his willingness to be elected as a director. Unless otherwise
determined by the directors and notified by the Company to the
shareholders, the period for lodgment of said notices shall be a
seven day period commencing on the day after the dispatch of
the notice of the general meeting for such election of director(s)
and ending on the date falling seven days after the dispatch of the
said notice of the general meeting. The written notice must state
that person’s biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing rules and that the person has passed The Owners’ and
Directors’ Test of the Football League Limited (“Football League”)
in the U.K. pursuant to the Appendix Ill of the Regulation of the
Football League.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication
channels between itself and its shareholders, investors and other
stakeholders. These include the annual general meeting, the
annual and interim reports, notices, announcements and circulars
and the Company’s website at http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/
birminghamint/. There has not been any significant changes in the
Company’s constitutional documents during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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The Board is pleased to submit their report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred as to the “Group”) for the year
ended 30 June 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is engaged in investment holding. The principal
activity of its major subsidiaries is the operation of a professional
football club.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2015 are

set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 47.

The state of affairs of the Group as at 30 June 2015 are set out
in the consolidated statement of financial position on pages 48 to
49.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
nor transfer of any amount to reserves in respect of the year
ended 30 June 2015 (2014: Nil).

SEGMENT INFORMATION AND TURNOVER
An analysis of the Group’s turnover and contribution to the results
by principal activities for the year ended 30 June 2015 is set out
in Notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group and of the Company during the year ended are set out in
Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year ended are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year ended are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 50 and Note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 140. This
Summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s sales to the five largest customers
and purchases from the five largest suppliers accounted for less
than 30% of the Group’s revenue and purchases, respectively.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the financial year and up to
the date of this Report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Liu Yiu Keung Stephen (Chairman)
(appointed on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Yen Ching Wai David (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 9 March 2015)
Ms. Koo Chi Sum (appointed on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Cheung Shing (resigned on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Ma Shui Cheong (resigned on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Chen Liang (resigned on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Panagiotis Pavlakis
(retired on 6 January 2015,
appointed on 7 January 2015
and resigned on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Peter Pannu
(removed on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Chan Shun Wah (removed on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Cheung Kwai Nang
(suspended on 9 March 2015 and
subsequently resigned on 11 March 2015)
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DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Yuk Ming (appointed on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Law Pui Cheung (appointed on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Lai Hin Wing Henry Stephen (appointed on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson
(suspended on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Gao Shi Kui (resigned on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Liu Enxue (retired on 6 January 2015,
appointed on 7 January 2015 and
resigned on 9 March 2015)
Mr. Li Hanguo (retired on 6 January 2015,
appointed on 7 January 2015 and
resigned on 9 March 2015)

The Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with
articles 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out
on pages 13 to 15 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensations).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

During the year ended 30 June 2015, Asia Rays, a company being
directly and wholly owned by Mr. Peter Pannu, who is a former
executive director of the Company during the period from 19
September 2012 to 9 March 2015, provided consultancy services
to the Group amounting to approximately HK$1,200,000 (2014:
HK$6,124,000) based on the contractual terms of the Consultancy
Agreement.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 15
July 2015 in which it was announced that the Company and BCFC
(as joint plaintiffs) had commenced legal proceedings against
a former director of the Company, Asia Rays and Amazing Top
in the High Court of Hong Kong on 13 July 2015 in connection
with the former director’s breaches of fiduciary duties, to among
others, enter into the Consultancy Agreement.

On 25 September 2015, the Company filed an application with the
Court to add Mr. Peter Pannu as the 4th Defendant in the legal
action and to amend the statement of claim.

=3¢ )
BuFHTES
RERLE(R-_S—AE=-FNLBEESHE)
BHERE(R-E—RFE=FNBESHE)
BEAEE(RN-_ZE—RF=ANLBEZE)
BEREE LA
(R=Z—RE=ANEBEERKE)
BELE(R_SE—AFE=AABHIT)
BEBEAE (N _E—RAFE—AXBEE -
R-Z—HE—ALBESHE
BR-ZE—RE=ANBEE)
FERAEE(R-_E—RFE—AABRE -
R-E—RE—A+AEEHE
RR-Z—RE=ANBEE)

EXARBRARREBERMREL7T( K
ERTME - EARR ZMEAFKRE L
BERNBEEE -

EEERE
AARES L EERNFRE13E5H -

EE2RBEXN

BEENEEREBT AR LR e E
F o AAARRARTERNHECETH
BE SN ZIER TR —E NS ZREA D -

BEECEER
REBEE-_T—AFNA=-+THELEFE  KE
A HPeter Pannut E(R—_ZE——_F N A
THAhRAE-ZE-—RE=FABHEALRR
RIAAATES ) ER2EBE2RR] &
EREBEZOTEERAAEEREBERDR
% A E#I1,200,0008 (=T — MY 4 ¢
6,124,000/ 7T) °

BURRAAATAHAT—RHFLA+H
Bz IEARFEBCFC {EARRRE
NEZZE—RAFELAT=ZBREASEE
Pt A RalgiEESE « }E K Amazing Top
REEEREF ADEHEZEBATESEE
(Ehem) iy EMmERERZERE

R-ZZT—RAFNA-+HHE  ARERVER
R - #Peter PannuE L MATEAZ
FRETHFENEWE A WIER AR
=,

=

F# Annual Report 2015

33



34

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
(Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2015, to the best
knowledge of the existing Directors, no contracts of significance
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 30 June 2015, to the best knowledge of the existing Directors,
the following parties (not being Directors or chief executive of
the Company) had an interest in 5% or more of the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”).
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Mr. Yeung Ka Sing, Carson 2,700,000,000.00  Long 27.89%
BRBEE e

U-Continent Holdings Limited 1,500,000,000.00 Long 1 15.49%
TR

Mr. Wang Lei 1,500,000,000.00  Long 15.49%
THEEE TR
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Notes:

1. U-Continent Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Wang Lei
(“Mr. Wang”). Mr. Wang is the younger brother of Ms. Wang Man Li
who is a domestic partner of Mr. Yeung. Mr. Wang is deemed to be
interested in 1,500,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company held
through U-Continent Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed herein, to the best knowledge of the existing
Directors, there is no person known to the Directors or chief
executive of the Company, who as at 30 June 2015, had
registered an interest and short positions in the share capital of
the Company that would fall to be disclosed to the Company and
the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or which was recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 30 June 2015, to the best knowledge of the
existing Directors, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

At 30 June 2015, none of the existing Directors and chief
executive of the Company has interest in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to date of this Report, no existing Director
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries is considered to have
an interest in a business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group,
pursuant to the Listing Rules, other than those business of which
the existing Directors were appointed as Directors to represent
the interest of the Company and/or the Group.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to its existing shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “SHARE OPTION
SCHEMES” below, to the best knowledge of the existing Directors,
at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company
or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate. None of the existing Directors, or their
spouses or their children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the shares of the Company, or had exercised any
such rights during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Under the share option schemes adopted by the Company on
30 July 2007, the board of Directors of the Company may, at its
discretion, grant options to eligible participants to subscribe for
share in the Company. The Company did not grant options for the
financial year under the share option schemes.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 16 to
30 of this Report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transaction by the Directors of the Company.
All Directors have confirmed following specific enquiry by the
Company that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code during the year ended 30 June 2015.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three active and one suspended
independent non-executive Directors of the Company has
reviewed with the Receivers and the auditor the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed the
auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters including
review of the audited financial information and financial report for
the year ended 30 June 2015.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors of the Company as at
date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

ZHONGHUI ANDA have been appointed as the auditors of the
Company with effect from 13 April 2015 to fill the casual vacancy
following the non-acceptance of appointment as auditors of the
Company by KTC Partners CPA Limited following the retirement of
JH CPA Alliance Limited as auditors of the Company which took
effect from 6 January 2015. Save for the above, there has been
no other change in the auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding three years.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2015 were audited by ZHONGHUI ANDA who will retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment
of ZHONGHUI ANDA as auditors of the Company will be proposed
in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Liu Yiu Keung Stephen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 September 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BY %A ®E

il

ZHONGHUI

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

BIRMINGHAM INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(RECEIVERS APPOINTED)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of Birmingham International Holdings Limited (Receivers
Appointed) (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 47 to 139, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June
2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Except for the inability to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence as explained below,
we conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
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B % BED R

assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements

are free from material misstatement. Because of the matters as

described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraphs,

however, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit

evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

1.

Corresponding figures

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 30 June 2014 which form the basis for
the corresponding figures presented in the current year’s
consolidated financial statements were not audited
by us. The predecessor auditor’'s audit opinion on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 30 June 2014 was disclaimed because of the
significance of the possible effect of the limitations on the
scope of their audit and fundamental uncertainty relating to
the going concern basis, details of which are set out in the
predecessor’s auditor’s report dated 30 September 2014.

On 20 January 2015, the Company received a letter from
the predecessor auditor stating that they are withdrawing
their auditor’s report to the shareholders dated 30
September 2014 in respect of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2014.

There were no satisfactory audit procedures to ascertain
the existence, accuracy, presentation and completeness
of certain opening balances and corresponding figures (as
further detail explained in the following paragraphs) shown
in the current year’s consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BY %A ®E

Amounts due to former directors

At 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2015, the Group recorded
amounts due to former directors of approximately
HK$10,780,000 and HK$10,769,000, respectively. We were
unable to obtain sufficient and satisfactory audit evidence
to verify the amounts and the repayment terms of these
amounts. There were no other satisfactory audit procedures
including direct confirmation that we could perform to
satisfy ourselves as to whether these amounts were fairly
stated in the consolidated statements of financial position
as at 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2015.

Other payables

We have not obtained sufficient and satisfactory audit
evidence to satisfy ourselves as to the existence and
amounts of other payables of approximately HK$5,353,000
as at 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2015. There are no other
satisfactory audit procedures including direct confirmation
that we could perform to satisfy ourselves as to whether
these amounts were fairly stated in the consolidated
statements of financial position as at 30 June 2014 and 30
June 2015.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Suspected misappropriation of funds

The Company announced on 19 January 2015 that a former
employee of the Company may have misappropriated
a sum of at least HK$30,000,000, and announced on
22 January 2015 that such former employee may have
misappropriated a further sum of at least HK$8,000,000
belonging to the Group. The Company has reported the
above suspected misappropriation to the Hong Kong Police
Force for investigation. They arrested the former employee
on 17 January 2015, but no charges have been laid against
the former employee so far. He was subsequently released
on bail.

The Company finally discovered approximately
HK$37,543,000 were suspected to have been
misappropriated, of which HK$9,643,000 were included
in the consolidated profit or loss for the year ended 30
June 2015 and HK$27,900,000 were included in the
consolidated profit or loss for the previous financial years
up to 30 June 2014.

We have not obtained sufficient and satisfactory audit
evidence to satisfy ourselves as to the nature of the above
amounts. Furthermore, there may be a cut-off effect on the
consolidated loss for the years ended 30 June 2014 and 30
June 2015 or on the financial years prior to that. We have
not been provided with sufficient and satisfactory audit
evidence of whether the above amounts are fairly stated
and should be recorded in the current year or prior years.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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5. Convertible bonds

(a)

The U-Continent convertible bonds

On 5 February 2014, the Company issued a zero
coupon convertible bond (the “First CB”) of
principal amount of HK$50,000,000 to U-Continent
Holdings Limited (“U-Continent”). On 21 February
2014, HK$10,000,000 of the First CB was converted
into 333,333,333 ordinary shares of the Company.

In 2014, the Company issued a zero coupon
convertible bond (the “Second CB”) in two tranches
to the principal amount of HK$125,000,000 (as
to HK$105,000,000 under the first tranche issued
on 5 February 2014 and HK$20,000,000 under
the second tranche issued on 14 April 2014) to
U-Continent. On 9 October 2014, HK$45,000,000 of
the Second CB was converted into 1,500,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company.

On 21 July 2015, the Company announced that the
Board has resolved to institute legal proceedings
against U-Continent, in connection with alleged
misrepresentations made by U-Continent in
the First CB and Second CB agreements (the
“Agreements”), in which U-Continent represented
that at the time of entering into the Agreements
and up until the time of completion of the
Agreements, U-Continent was independent from
and not acting in concert with any of the Directors
or substantial shareholders of the Company (the
“Misrepresentations”). The Company contended
that at the time of entering into and/or completion
of the Agreements, U-Continent knew that it was
acting in concert with Mr. Yeung and that Mr.
Yeung was the Company’s substantial shareholder
and executive director. Accordingly, the Company
rescinded the Agreements by way of a letter to

5.

AR EE

(a)
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U-Continent dated 20 July 2015 and filed a writ of
summons against U-Continent in the High Court of
Hong Kong on 21 July 2015 claiming for loss and
damages suffered by the Company as a result of
the Misrepresentations.

As a result of the above legal actions, the Company
has made a retrospective restatement to re-
classify the remaining balance of the First CB of
HK$40,000,000 and Second CB of HK$125,000,000,
totaling HK$165,000,000 as at 30 June 2014, as an
amount due to U-Continent, and included in other
borrowings.

During the year ended 30 June 2015,
HK$45,000,000 of the Second CB was converted
into 1,500,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company.
The Company has re-classified the remaining
balance of the First CB of HK$40,000,000
and Second CB of HK$80,000,000, totaling
HK$120,000,000 as at 30 June 2015, as an
amount due to U-Continent, and included in other
borrowings.

Up to the date of this Report, the legal action is still
in progress and no conclusion has been reached so
far. We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence on the accounting treatment of the
First CB and Second CB, including whether the First
CB and Second CB constitute equity instruments
which should be classified as a convertible bonds
reserve, or whether the recognition of the remaining
balances of the First CB of HK$40,000,000 and
Second CB of HK$125,000,000 as at 30 June 2014,;
and the remaining balances of the First CB of
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(b)

HK$40,000,000 and Second CB of HK$80,000,000
as at 30 June 2015 to other borrowings is
appropriate. In addition, we were unable to
determine whether the conversion of the First CB
during the year ended 30 June 2014 and conversion
of the Second CB during the years ended 30 June
2015 constitute a transaction within the scope of
HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 19 “Extinguishing Financial
Liabilities with Equity Instruments” which would
require to determine the fair value of the equity
instruments issued. We were also unable to quantify
the effect on the consolidated profit or loss for the
years ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2015.

Mr. Yeung'’s debt convertible bonds

On 20 December 2013, the Company and Mr. Yeung
agreed to capitalise the debt owed by the Company
of HK$193,500,000 to Mr. Yeung by issuing a zero
coupon convertible bond (the “Debt CB”). The Debt
CB can be converted to a total of approximately
6,450,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at
a conversion price HK$0.03 per debt conversion
share.

The Company recorded the initial value of the Debt
CB of HK$193,500,000, which was the carrying
value of the debt owed by the Company as at the
completion date of the subscription agreement (i.e.
5 February 2014). However, in accordance with
HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 19 “Extinguishing Financial
Liabilities with Equity Instruments”, when equity
instruments issued to a creditor to extinguish all or
part of a financial liability are recognised initially,
an entity shall measure them at the fair value of the
equity instruments issued. We have not obtained
sufficient and satisfactory audit evidence to satisfy
ourselves as to the fair value of the Debt CB. Any
adjustment to the fair value of the Debt CB at

(b)
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the time of issuance will affect the consolidated
loss for the year ended 30 June 2014 and on
the classification of the accumulated losses and
convertible bonds reserve as at 30 June 2014 and
30 June 2015.

6. Administrative expenses
During the year ended 30 June 2015, the Group recorded
certain administrative expenses amounted to approximately
HK$5,663,000 which consisted of consultancy fees, staff
costs, motor vehicle and travelling expenses. We have
not obtained sufficient and satisfactory audit evidence to
satisfy ourselves as to the nature of these expenses.

7. Material uncertainty relating to the going concern basis
We draw attention to note 2(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recorded a loss attributable to the
owners of the Company of approximately HK$4,161,000 for
the year ended 30 June 2015, and net current liabilities of
approximately HK$145,639,000 as at 30 June 2015. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, the validity of which
is dependent upon future funding available at a level
sufficient to finance the working capital requirements of the
Company. The consolidated financial statements do not
include any adjustments that would result from the failure
to obtain the financial support.

We consider that the material uncertainty has been
adequately disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements. However, in view of the extent of the
uncertainty relating to the availability of future funding, we
disclaim our opinion in respect of the material uncertainty
relating to the going concern basis.

Any consequential effect in connection with the above matters
would affect the net assets of the Group as at 30 June 2014 and
2015, and the Group’s loss for the years ended 30 June 2014 and
30 June 2015, and the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Because of the significance of the matters as described in the
basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, we have not been able
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis
for an audit opinion. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our
opinion, the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Sze Lin Tang

Practising Certificate Number P03614

Hong Kong, 30 September 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GERBRAMEEANER

For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—LE—hFNA=T1THIFE

2015 2014
=EB-HF _—TMOF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
it3 FET FHT
(Restated)
(1 &%)
(Note 2a)
(K17 2a)
Revenue Wz 8 253,584 253,227
Operating expenses RS (273,156) (362,107)
Loss from operations before amortisations 7 &1 &4 7 & & &5 18 (19,572) (108,880)
Other income E A 9 37,723 15,169
Gain on settlement of borrowings BEEBE 2K 27,958 33,275
Profit on sales of players’ registrations &K 8 = 2 Uz 22,647 42758
Amortisation of intangible assets BT G (4,859) (4,786)
Administrative and other expenses TR R E A2 (71,301) (98,818)
Finance costs BA TSR AN 10 (475) (18,267)
Loss before taxation R 754 Al & 1 (7,879) (139,549)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisFife, (F) 11 3,471 (21,032)
Loss for the year rEEEE 12 (4,408) (160,581)
Other Comprehensive expenses Hih2mEEAX
Items that may be reclassfied HEAEHEE R 2 HE -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on FIRE G N B A B B 3Rk
translation of financial statements FRESE 2B N 58
of overseas subsidiaries (16,704) (1,836)
Total comprehensive expenses for AEELEBARERE
the year (21,112) (162,417)
Loss for the year attributable to: UTEBEEEEREERS :
Owners of the Company RARER A (4,161) (157,430)
Non-controlling interests FEIE A (247) (3,151)
(4,408)  (160,581)
Total comprehensive expenses B2 HEBEXEEE :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZAYNEIE ZEN 15 (20,303) (159,206)
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR 2 (809) (3,211)
(21,112) (162,417)
Loss per share BRER
— Basic and diluted (HK cent(s)) — EARREECE) 17 (0.05) (3.49)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

& B Bk R 3R

At 30 June 2015
R-ZF—AFE~NA=1H

30 June 30 June 1 July
2015 2014 2013
SE-—RHF —T—mFE —T—=F
ANA=+H ~A=1+H +A—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HtaF FET FET FHET
(Restated)  (Restated)
(&E75) (&E5)
(Note 2a) (Note 2a)
(Hizt2a) (Hfzt2a)
Non-current assets REBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB KRR 18 246,912 281,425 264,119
Intangible assets mEE 19 41,756 43,627 37,896
Deposits, prepayments and & - EFIEREAE
other receivables WKIE 23 623 1,334 83
289,291 326,386 302,098
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 21 1,603 1,667 2,225
Trade receivables FEUE 5 BRK 22 12,274 19,153 93,687
Deposits, prepayments and B FERFRIEREAmE
other receivables &/er] 23 42,101 35,185 15,705
Amounts due from related FENR FRE A RIRIE
companies 24 — 993 1,249
Cash held at non-bank financial R 3ESRT1TE BLHEHE PTHEIR
institutions & 1 1 1
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIE S 25 58,815 143,007 49,996
114,794 200,006 162,863
Current liabilities B E
Transfer fee payables EfEes 26 1,097 3,802 8,428
Trade payables B E SRR 27 14,910 26,284 28,705
Accruals and other payables FERTFRIE K H Atb - 3/ IE 28 47,634 53,561 56,879
Deferred capital grants IERE & AR 29 695 752 672
Amounts due to former directors FEfTRTE E 518 30 10,769 10,780 5,198
Deferred income PRIELA F 23,142 22,500 23,770
Borrowings BE 32 139,974 298,296 178,442
Amounts due to directors ERNESRIA = = 544
Income tax payable FET PSR 22,212 23,757 418
260,433 439,732 303,056
Net current liabilities REBEFEE (145,639) (239,726) (140,193)
Total assets less current EEABERRBARS
liabilities 143,652 86,660 161,905
BIRMINGHAM INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED (RECEIVERS APPOINTED) {HFASIIREBKIEIRER A (EZTHEEA)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

an = B R 0 AR

At 30 June 2015
REZF—RFNA=1H

30 June 30 June 1 July
2015 2014 2013
—EB-RHE —TMWOF —FT—=F
~NA=tH K~A=+H +H—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HteF FET FEIT FET
(Restated)  (Restated)
€<=vl) (#&E75)
(Note 2a) (Note 2a)
(Hiat2a) (K17 2a)
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Transfer fee payables RANEEN 6 26 296 704 —
Accruals and other payables FERTFRIE f H Atb & T R IE 28 — 521 —
Deferred capital grants IERE & AN 29 19,907 22,298 20,600
Borrowings =94 32 43,869 834 2,025
Amounts due to directors BN EEHRIAE — — 182,808
Deferred tax liabilities RIEF IR A E 33 33,383 39,994 37,296
97,455 64,351 242,729
NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) BE (BfE)FE 46,197 22,309 (80,824)
Capital and reserves EXRR#E
Share capital [N 34 96,811 54,811 38,878
Reserves (e 34 (53,537) (36,234) (119,962)
Equity attributable to owners ARBHER ARIGHES
of the Company 43,274 18,577 (81,084)
Non-controlling interests eI MR 2,923 3,732 260
TOTAL EQUITY/ REEE(EREH)
(CAPITAL DEFICIENCIES) 46,197 22,309 (80,824)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 47 to 139 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30
September 2015, and signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Liu Yiu Keung Stephen
BERiE
Director

EF

FATEF1E AN BBRREESTERN
TE-RFEAA=TEMERBRETIE I

B TIIESHREREE

Mr. Yen Ching Wai David

BERLEE
Director

EF
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CONSQLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
YN T )T
el Tt g e 01

Attributable to owners of the Company

AOARE AR
Foreign
currency  Convertible Non-
Share Share Capital translation bonds  Accumulated controlling
capital Premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests Total

TERES

ke RBEE  EREE ANEEARE e ZHEE gt FEREs 5t
(Note 34(a)(ii)) (Note 34(a)iii)) (Note 34(a)iv)) (Note 34(a)(v))
(Wtsaali) (sqa)i) (BEsqa)i) (HEsqa))

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000

7Ar FAT 741 FAT A1 77 A1 77 FAT

At1.July 2013, as previously R-E-=£+F-8

stated (ME23) 3878 1,182593 6,510 (18,018) - (1,26449) (99,529) 260 (99,269)
Eifect of prior year NEERRuy2
adjustments - - - - — 18,445 18,445 - 18,445

At1July 2013, as restated ~ R=F-=%tA-R
(@E7]) B/OT8 1132503 6,510 (13,018) - (126047) (81,084) 260 (80,824)

Total comprehensive PERRERREE

expenses for the year - - - (1,776) - (157,430)  (159,206) 3211)  (162,417)
Loss on deed novation HREERL - - - - = (6,683) (6,683) 6,663 =
Issue of convertible bonds ~ ET#RES - - - - 193,500 - 193,500 = 193500
Issue of shares BIRH 15,933 56,117 = = = = 72,050 = 72,050
Change in equiy for the year  AEEEREH) 15,933 56,117 = (1776) 193500 (164113 99,661 3472 103133

At 30 June 2014, as restated W=E-MEXA=1H

(&E5) 54811 1188710 6,510 (14,794) 193500 (1,410,160 18,577 3732 22,309
At 1 July 2014, HN-%-MELA-A
as previously stated (RN EE5)) 54811 1188710 6,510 (14794 350500  (1424289) 161448 3732 165,180
Eifect of prior year PRiEEE
adjustments = = = —  (157.000) 1129 (142871) - (42871)

At1July 2014, as restated ~ R=E-TE+A-H
HE]) 54,811 1,188,710 6,510 (14,794) 193500 (1,410,160) 18,577 3732 22,309

Total comprehensive expense AEE2EFR A%

for th year - - - (610 - @161 (20309 @9 (1112
[ssue of shares ik 15,000 30,000 - - - - 45,000 - 45,000
Issue of shares upon REBTARERMEN

conversion of convertiole  [RfA

bonds 27,000 54,000 = = (81,000) = = = =
Change in equity for the year AEEERZH 42,000 84,000 = (16,142) (81,000) (4161) 24,697 (809) 23,888
At 30 June 2015 RE-TE/A=TH 96,811 1272710 6,510 (30936) 112500 (1414321) 43274 2,923 46,197
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERTRER

For the year ended 30 June 2015
A2 —FT—HFNA=FHIFE

2015 2014
=EB-HF _—TMOF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
(Restated)
(&E7))
(Note 2a)
(K17 2a)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETFHHESR
ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation B 7% Bl & 18 (7,879) (139,549)
Adjustments for: T
Finance costs BA TSR AN 475 18,267
Interest income SN @N (137) (142)
Depreciation e 16,482 11,408
Gain on disposals of property, plant HEYE - BE &KEREZ K
and equipment (63) (230)
Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries  BUHz B A 72 Yz = (419)
Net gain on proposed settlement B 7 5 R AR 2 M a
with a vendor (6,500) —
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERH 4,859 4,786
Profit on sale of players’ registrations SR 8 S 2 5 F (22,647) (42,758)
Reverse of excess provision for BB R A D
Donation (13,069) (6,584)
Impairment of property, plant and M - BB kA2 RE
equipment 1,166 —
Impairment of trade receivables JEW & 5 BR 2 B 1,438 28
Impairment of due form related Bl A R R K2 RE
companies 993 —
Impairment of amount due from R{EE SRR ZRIE
ex-director 1,500 —
Gain on settlement of borrowings BEEREZ WK (27,958) (33,275)
Operating cash flow before working EEESEPRCKEREN
capital changes (51,340) (188,468)
Change in inventories FEZ2F) (62) 785
Change in trade receivables EWE SRR & (2,338) 79,833
Change in prepayments, deposits and &% - FBI5 7R I8 [ H i fE U 5018 2 &
other receivables (10,038) (24,088)
Change in trade payables JERTE SRR 2 & (134) (4,438)
Change in other payables and accruals — E i fE {308 & fE 51 7118 » & B 8,224 1,324
Change in transfer fee payable ENEes & (2,737) (4,703)
Change in amount due to former FET AT EE 38 RRIE 2 &
directors (11) —
Change in deferred capital grants RIEBE AR 2 & (682) 1,778
Change in deferred income RIEW A 2 B 2,325 (3,912)
Net cash used in operating activities E&FEFAZREFH (56,793) (141,889)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mMERERER

For the year ended 30 June 2015

BE—F—AFNA=FHIFE

2015 2014
—E—FE — P4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
(Restated)
(F&E=7)
(Note 2a)
(#iit2a)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZFB2RER
ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property, plant and WEEMZE - BE K&
equipment (4,509) (13,227)
Acquisition of intangible assets W B T & (6,437) (6,400)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME - MEREEZSHIE
plant and equipment 268 2,213
Proceeds from disposals of intangible  HE&EFEE 2 FTEHIE
assets 22,794 43,200
Interest received EH&U’HJ & 137 142
Repayments from related companies FAE R AEN — 256
Net cash flows generated from REZDHEEZRSFER
investing activities 12,253 26,184
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RETEZHEER
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from new borrowings HEE 25308 44,330 222,628
Repayment of bank loans & other loans (BEETER N EMER (80,272) (82,848)
Proceeds from issue of new shares BATHAR 2 TS 3RIA — 62,050
Repayment to directors BEEER = (544)
Interest paid EFLE (475) (119)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated RETE(FTA)  ELEZ2RELFE
from financing activities (36,417) 201,167
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ~ R&RRESEEBRARDFHE
EQUIVALENTS (80,957) 85,462
Cash and cash equivalents at FYzHe kRS EEIEE
beginning of year 143,007 49,996
Effect on exchange rate changes, net EXEH 28 38 (3,235) 7,549
Cash and cash equivalents at end FR2ESRRELZEEB
of year 58,815 143,007
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH ReRRESEEHEZERDIM
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances H& MIRITHH 58,815 143,007
58,815 143,007
BIRMINGHAM INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED (RECEIVERS APPOINTED) 1A 8IIRER AR A R A BEREEEAN)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=

For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—LE—hFNA=T1THIFE

1.

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability. The address of
its registered office is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The principal place of business is located at Room
1200, 12/F, Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central,
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and have been
suspended for trading since 4 December 2014.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding
and its subsidiaries are mainly engaged in the professional
football club operation in the U.K..

The functional currency of the Group’s entities in
Hong Kong is Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and for
those subsidiaries established in the U.K. is GBP. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in HK$
for the convenience of the shareholders and users of the
consolidated financial statements as the Company is listed
in Hong Kong.

—REH
RAREREHSTEMK L AR R
BIRA A o Hak i R ik iz 1
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,P.
O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands ° £ & &3
BN E S FIRTrEER 111 55K
ZH 012181200 F ° AR A Z R D
REBRZAEREMN - B2 W4
TZAMBREFER -

ARRIZ EBEHRIETRR - HHt
BARAREBEUERRRIRIREE

o

-

AEEREENERZNEER RE
(B ]) MRREKL KB
REIZWEEERRERE - ARARE
REB LT - RTBRERZREMBER
RZAT  HEPBHRRTIAETLZE
5] o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B 3R B

For the year ended 30 June 2015

HEZ

2.

BIRMINGHAM INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED (RECEIVERS APPOINTED) {HEA# IR BRIZER B R A

E—AFNA=THIFFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the laws of
Hong Kong) and applicable disclosure requirements
of the Listing Rules.

The Group’s annual financial statements for the
year ended 30 June 2014 were audited by JH CPA
Alliance Limited (the “Predecessor Auditor”).
On 20 January 2015, the Company received a
letter from the Predecessor Auditor stating that
they were withdrawing their auditor’'s report to the
shareholders dated 30 September 2014 in respect
of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2014.

Going concern basis

The Group incurred a loss attributable to the owners
of the Company of approximately HK$4,161,000 for
the year ended 30 June 2015 and had a net current
liabilities of approximately HK$145,639,000 as at
30 June 2015. These conditions indicate that the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern and therefore the Group may
be unable to realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business.

(a)

(b)

EHREH
RAEMBHRERERER BT
AR B2 BB RS LE
AT BMBHREER]) -
ERLRGEIRA - A A&
(BB EHE622E) 2 HBEE
Sk LR A2 E A EE K
e

leglﬁj: PIIQE/\

:+E¢¢fz¢rﬁﬁﬁ%
THEESTMEHEMERA

RI(AT R BAR ) Bz - R =
T—HF—HA=+H ' AAA
W B 2R B ATAZ SR 2 (2 61 R
TEEREgAEEREZE =
E—MENA=THIEFEEZ
REFBHREN =T —EFA
A=+ B RRE 2 B

HE -

nmmuss
AEBHEZE_ZT—RAF A
:+E¢¢Eﬁﬁ$Aﬁ%

B A JE 15 B 18 44,161,000
BT IR _FE—HFEANAH

S THEERBDBREFELY
145,639,000/ 7T ° tEBR

BERGFEEARATEEM » Mk
ETREE M e B BUA S B
BISE 2R NFRE - B - R
S ERTRERBEN IE & %5872
FERAEERBEREEE -

A(EZEEEA)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=

For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—LE—hFNA=T1THIFE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

Going concern basis (Continued)

Nevertheless, the Receivers of the Company are of
the opinion that the Group will have sufficient working
capital to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due for the next twelve months given that the
Company has on 26 June 2015 entered into a loan
facility agreement with Trillion Trophy, the ultimate
beneficial owner(s) of which are third party(ies)
independent of and not connected with the Company
and the connected person(s) of the Company. As
detailed in announcement of the Company dated
30 June 2015, Trillion Trophy agreed to grant a
secured loan facility of up to a maximum amount
of HK$153,000,000 to the Company for funding the
Company’s operation and the operation of BCP and
BCFC pursuant to the loan facility agreement for a
term of 18 months from the date of the agreement.
The Receivers are of the opinion that the liquidity and
the financial resources of the Group are significantly
enhanced since the loan facility has become
available.

2.

RBEXE )

(b)

BEKEEREE)

R - RAREEARE
ENARATR —E—HEN
BZ=+7xHHTrillion Trophy
(EERERBEEARBIR
RAr REBEATBEARRQ
AIRHBEATHEREY
E=F)EIERREREER
Z - MAEEREBRHEE
B LREMBEEEARR
T-EAREENENS
B - BWBAR=T—HF
NA=TBZ AT -
Trillion Trophy B E [AARA A
% F = 153,000,000 70,2
BERBEBE - LIREBER
MEFEEHRANRB 2 EE
LA B BCP MBCFCzZ & & 1%
HES - B%iHEA R A
H18fH A - #EARBAEAE
B2 RB) I R ERRER
ZERBMERERELEEL
58 °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B 3R B

For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—F—AFNA=T1THIFE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b)

Going concern basis (Continued)

Reference is also made to the announcements
of the Company dated 8 April 2015, 8 May 2015,
8 June 2015, 25 June 2015, 30 June 2015, 30
July 2015, 31 August 2015 and 30 September
2015 in relation to the possible restructuring and
continuous suspension of trading. On 19 June 2015,
the Receivers executed with Trillion Trophy an
exclusivity agreement. As at the date of the issue of
the consolidated financial statements, the Receivers
are negotiating with Trillion Trophy as a potential
offeror of the Company on its possible subscription
and/or purchase of shares in the Company and/or
BCP, a 96.64% owned subsidiary of the Company
which owns the entire share capital of BCFC which
in turn operates the professional football club in the
U.K..

Taking into the consideration of the funding needs
of the Group, the obligation to meet requirements
of the English Football League and in order to
maintain the operation of BCFC, the Receivers are
considering to raise additional funds by entering
into further agreements with Trillion Trophy and/
or by other means of fund raising exercises. The
Company will issue further announcements setting
out the progress of the possible restructuring as
and when appropriate and necessary.

Accordingly, the Receivers are of the opinion that it
is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on the going concern basis. Should the
Group be unable to continue as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to the financial
statements, to write down the value of assets to
their recoverable amounts, to provide for further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities respectively. The effect
of these adjustments has not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

2.

RBEXE )

(b)

BHESERE(E)
SRAANGIR T —AFN
ARNB Z_E—RFRHAN
H-ZZ2—AF~ANR - =
E—RFA~NA=-_F+HAB =
T—HAFAA=1+RH =%
—HF+A=+H -ZF—F
FNAZ+—BAR=ZZT—HF
NA=Z+BErA e EAEKRF
BEERZHNEZ DM R
—E-—RFERATNRB - E
& NE Trillion Trophy =]sZ8E
i - BLEGRE M BHE
HIHEH - ZEEALEERAIEE
RERSEEARB R, K
BCP (& 2 & ¥ & 96.64% %
DEME AR - H# B BCFC
ZEBRRAR » T BCFC F BEE 4%
ERETRE ) B ARH B Trillion
Trophy ({E BN R A) 2 A RE UK
BT )EATHER ©

REBRAEBMEST K
HEURKBRIRBERTE Z
BENARR T #FBCFCHE
B EEALEZES BN
Trillion Trophy 2&]#— 1%
ZR/EERNEMEETEE
SHEINES - ARRIBIEEE
ZHESRMATREEENER
BN TIEE— A o

FHit - HEARR - AL
LEERRGEUHHRERBNG
B o WMAKREREEERERL
% BIAH P BERRELS
B UHBEEEEEEAK
BlE% - UBLATREE S 2 —
FREFREE - URKIER
HEENIFRBEED BIEFH
DERRBEERRBERE -
HEPBZTERARAREA M
Bk R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=

For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—LE—hFNA=T1THIFE

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new
and revised HKFRSs that are relevant to its operations
and effective for its accounting year beginning on 1 July
2014. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS"); and Interpretations. The adoption of these new
and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes
to the Group’s accounting policies, presentation of the
Group’s financial statements and amounts reported for the
current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new
HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether these
new HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results of
operations and financial position.

PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS

(a) Accruals
On 18 November 2009, the Company entered into
a cooperation agreement with China Foundation
of Disable Persons (i B & A & Fl & € € ) (the
“Cooperation Agreement’) whereby the Company
agreed to establish the Birmingham Charity Fund
and would donate up to an aggregate amount of
RMB50,000,000 to the Birmingham Charity Fund
in a 5-year period of RMB10,000,000 each year
(the “Donation”). The Cooperation Agreement
was expired after 19 November 2014. Up to 30
June 2015, the Group has accrued approximately
HK$55,239,000. The Receivers have sought legal
advice on the validity of the Cooperation Agreement.

3.

BRANHE RAEIBRTBRY
IR G LR

RAFE ARECEBERLLEN
BAEN_E-—NELA-BRKZE
SHEEMEERZ IB ] REERT
BEMBHREER - BEPBWESE
ABEBEEVMBRELEN([EBHH
BEER])  FEGHEN(ERE
FHER )RR - AU FHR] KK
BRI EEM GRS ER L EBEHAE
B2 EBR - AREE R RAESF
EZHBHRIERSEZ2HHR

RER B W AR AN B DR E MR AR
A B BMBREER - AEEEH
WRRT G UL SRR BB M IS & R EY
FE  BRREEHEFIHTEENE
BEEJEDGHELEXERME
RRERBRZE -

NWEFEEZRE
(a) FEFTRIE
i

N = =

=

=113

ENFE+—A+ A
B AQrHEPEER AR
MESEEITEERBEIE
EHE] Bt XQFR
ERMEHEREEES I
RAFREARMBEERES
EsRBLBEEaAARE
50,000,0007C & X - &
A R ¥10,000,000 (48
D)o BEHBBER=_Z—N
F+—A+NBREE - HEE
—T-RFANA=TH K&
| & 5T 5018 49 4 55,239,000
BT - B AERAEREZ
ARESSOERER -

&
N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B 3R B

For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—F—AFNA=T1THIFE

4.

PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Accruals (Continued)

Based on the legal advice, the statute of limitation
period would be two years in the PRC. As such,
management considers that the unpaid and
accrued Donation for years from 2010 to 2012 of
approximately HK$37,698,000 was already beyond
the retroactive period and therefore reversed such
accruals in the respective years when they were
expired. Accordingly, prior year adjustments have
been made to reverse the accrued Donation of
HK$18,045,000 and HK$6,584,000 in the year
ended 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2014 respectively,
and accrued Donation of HK$13,069,000 has been
reversed in the year ended 30 June 2015.

Convertible bonds

The U-Continent convertible bonds

On 5 February 2014, the Company issued a zero
coupon convertible bond (the “First CB”) of
principal amount of HK$50,000,000 to U-Continent
Holdings Limited (“U-Continent”). On 21 February
2014, HK$10,000,000 of the First CB was converted
into 333,333,333 ordinary shares of the Company.

In 2014, the Company issued a zero coupon
convertible bond (the “Second CB”) in two tranches
of aggregating principal amount of HK$125,000,000
to U-Continent. The first tranche of principal
amount HK$105,000,000 was issued on 5 February
2014. The second tranche of principal amount
HK$20,000,000 was issued on 14 April 2014. On 9
October 2014, HK$45,000,000 of the Second CB
was converted into 1,500,000,000 ordinary shares of
the Company.

4.

DEFEEZ2RAE %)
(a) FERTREE)

(b)

BIBZEEER  FBATER
WRERR AME - Bt s -
ERERAN_-_ZT—ZTER
T —FBARMNEFER
#)37,698,0007% L B HA H B
WER - B It B R 8 HR A )
= Bt - EETRAFDH
B UBEEGHESR  8EC
T—=FXXA=+BEK=_Z
—HERNAZTHIEFEZR
18 5 5l A& 18,045,000 7T &
6,584,000 7T - RELEZZT
—RFANA=Z+THLEEE B
% [8] 13,069,000 T 2 & 51

B e

AR ES

U-Continent T# % &3
RZZE-—WF_AREH AR
7] [ U-Continent Holdings
Limited ([U-Continent])
FOZEEEHF(E—TER
&% 1) &% %&50,000,000
BIme RZE—WMFE A
—+—H ' 10,000,000% JT
B E — A AR E S B EIR(E
333,333,333 IR AL Al EE
B o

EZZT—MF - XQAlMR
U-Continent 21T R it 7~ & &8
125,000,000 T2 T B &
F(E-ARRESF]) - 5
— L A€ 58 105,000,000 78 7T
R-ZT—MFE - ARBHT
£ — #t 7K & #20,000,000
BILTR-_Z—NEWA+mM
HET - R=ZZE—WE+ A
$1 B 45,000,000/ T HY
E_ABRKREFDERIE
1,500,000,000 f& 48 2 &) 3 38

%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=

For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—LE—hFNA=T1THIFE

4.

PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

The U-Continent convertible bonds (Continued)
According to the announcement of the Company
dated 21 July 2015, the Company had instituted
legal proceedings against U-Continent in
connection with alleged misrepresentations made
by U-Continent in the First CB and Second CB
agreements entered into between the Company
and U-Continent (collectively, the “Agreements”)
under which U-Continent acquired a total of
HK$175,000,000 convertible bonds in the Company.
By a letter to U-Continent dated 20 July 2015, the
Company rescinded the Agreements and on 21 July
2015 issued a writ of summons against U-Continent
from the High Court of Hong Kong claiming for loss
and damages suffered by the Company as a result
of the misrepresentations.

As a result of the rescission, the Company has
made a retrospective restatement to re-classify the
remaining balance of the First CB of HK$40,000,000
and Second CB of HK$125,000,000, totaling
HK$165,000,000 as at 30 June 2014, as an amount
due to U-Continent, which is included in borrowings.

During the year ended 30 June 2015,
HK$45,000,000 of the Second CB was converted
into 1,500,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company.
The Company has re-classified the remaining
balance of the First CB of HK$40,000,000
and Second CB of HK$80,000,000, totaling
HK$120,000,000 as at 30 June 2015, as an amount
due to U-Continent, which is included in borrowings.

4.

DURAFE-RAE#)

(b)

AR ES(E)
U-Continent i R &3 (&)
REAARBHA-Z—HF
tAZ+—HZAM  AQF
AR 7 K U-Continent 3732
ZE—ABRREFRE A
BmREH (S B ZE W
& |+ &k U-Continent i 8
AN 7] £k 175,000,000 7 7T 7]
# % {8 27 ) #5 #= U-Continent
RZEHBHEPEL RE R -
M U-Continent {2 i /& 2 12
FeARBEIR-_ZE—HFELA
— 1+ BBk U-Continent & L&
ZE WS YR —hF+
AZ+—BaEEEERA
U-Continent 2 X E& <7k
HARBRAFEARARBREZ
BARBERERR -

Bl ERE I 2178 AAQ
RIBELEHESFEE - U
HE-—ABRRESZHE
40,000,000 7T & 8 = ] #&
IR fE % 2 #2 %8 125,000,000 7%
T(R=F—mNEXA=+H
2 #2585 165,000,000 7 7T )
E 1 » A U-Continent
Z I - WEF ABRKF °

REBEE-_ZTE—RF~A=T
BIEFE8HE F_#®Rk
& % # & 45,000,000 7T &,
8 i6 & 7K A 7] 1,500,000,000
BREBR - AARGE—TA
% (& % 2 84 88 40,000,000
BITRE ZABRRES 2R
¥80,000,000/% (R = &
—RAFEANA=tHZREA
120,000,000 7o) EHHH
AT U-Continent 2 3038 -
WEt AERA o

% Annual Report 2015

ste)



60

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B 3R B

For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—F—AFNA=T1THIFE

4.

PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (continued)

(c)

Misappropriation of funds

As detailed in note 12(i) to this consolidated
financial statement, the Company had made two
announcements on 19 January 2015 and 22 January
2015 concerning that a former employee may
have misappropriated a total sum of approximately
HK$38,000,000, belonging to the Group (the
“Suspected Misappropriation”) covering at least
two accounting years ended 30 June 2014 and 30
June 2015.

Upon the current management’s investigation, it was
discovered that as at 30 June 2014, prepayments
of HK$2,500,000, convertible bonds issuance costs
of approximately HK$8,000,000 and other payments
of HK$400,000, totaling HK$10,900,000 form part
of the Suspected Misappropriation. Accordingly,
a prior year adjustment has been made to
reclassify the aggregate sum of the above items
of HK$10,900,000 as provision for suspected mis-
appropriated funds in the consolidated profit and
loss for the year ended 30 June 2014.

The following tables disclose the restatements
that have been made in order to reflect the
above corrections to each of the line items in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as previously reported for
the year ended 30 June 2014 and consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2014
and 1 July 2013 as previously reported.

4.

URAFEEZRAZ )
(c) WAES
MG A B RE 2 M

12() il - RARERZE
—REF—A+thAER=Z—H
FE-AZ+ZAFERAA
i ANBREBM—ZAIER D
HRBABRAER —E4H
38,000,000 ATz I ([1E
SRMARIE])  FHEEE
—E—MFESNA=Z+HAER=ZF
—AFANA=ZTHLEELME
eHFEEEM -

BERTEEEZ AT - %
BR-ZZ—WFESA=+
H - T8I 518 % 2,500,000 %
L AERELSZETER
#78,000,000 74 7T + E fth & 1+
FXIE 400,000 47T - HEA IR SR
WAFKIEBZ —EBH - BETH A
10,900,000/ 7T - A It + B
EHBEFERAE - LEFHH
¥ it % 78 $£ 10,900,000 75
TLZARE - LAYER SR SR
REE-_ZT—NFEA=1+H
ItFEzREERR L2 &
& o

TREBERHECERNETE
1B AR biigE —F
FRA=ZTHULEFEHZSBE
NEAEE R A2 W
SER-_F-OFNA=1H
N—Z—=%F+—B&EeH
BARRKB R HREZ KA
HRAIELE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=

For the year ended 30 June 2015
B2 _F A FANA=THIEFE

4. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (continued) 4. UEFFEZ2AZ =)

(d) Consolidated statement of profit or loss and (d &BE=F-—NOFAXA=+HL
other comprehensive income for the year ended FEZGREBEEREME2EK
30 June 2014 R

2014
(As Effect of
previously prior year’s 2014
reported) adjustments (As restated)
—T-mF NEEE —Z|mE
(RIAEZ5) REZE (&%)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
Revenue X 253,227 — 253,227
Cost of revenue TERY (362,107) - (362,107)
Loss from operations before RetBsH o L2 BB
amortisation (108,880) — (108,880)
Other income EtA 8,585 6,584 15,169
Gain on settlement of borrowings BREEE 2K 33,275 - 33,275
Profit on sales of players’ registrations 1 &5k 8 2% F 42,758 — 42,758
Amortisation of intangible assets B EER (4,786) = (4,786)
Administrative and other expenses TREEMES (87,918) (10,900) (98,818)
Finance costs SRR (18,267) — (18,267)
Loss before taxation BRiAIEE (135,233) (4,316) (139,549)
Income tax expense MBS (21,032) = (21,032)
Loss for the year rEEFR (156,265) (4,316) (160,581)
Other comprehensive expenses Hit2EMEX
Items that may be reclassified REAENAEZ Bl
subsequently to profit or loss: EH
Exchange differences arising on R E BN B 1 FIET 7
translation of foreign operations BREMEECELES (1,836) — (1,836)
Total comprehensive expenses AEEXERXAH
for the year (158,101) (4,316) (162,417)
Loss for the year attributable to: UTRBRERFERSE
Owners of the Company ARRIHEEA (153,114) (4,316) (157,430)
Non-controlling interests EE G i (3,151) — (3,151)
(156,265) (4,316) (160,581)
Total comprehensive expenses B2 EE AR
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ARRIHEEA (154,890) (4,316) (159,206)
Non-controlling interests IR (3,211) - (3,211)
(158,101) (4,316) (162,417)
Loss per share BREE
— Basic and diluted (HK cent(s)) — ERREECE) (3.40) (0.09) (3.49)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n o B A R R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE - F-AFAA=HLEFE

4. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (cContinued)

(e) Consolidated statement of financial position as

at 30 June 2014

4.

URAFEEZRAZ )
() M-B-MEXA=+AZ&
LHBRRE

30 June 2014
(As previously

Effect of
prior year's

30 June 2014

restated) adjustments (As restated)
—T-lmF —T|mF
~A=1H NEEE ~NA=t+H
(FRIAEZF) BB 2 (mE7l)
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment I ER S 281,425 — 281,425
Intangible assets BVEE 43,627 — 43,627
Deposits, prepayments and other Be - BRFEREMER
receivables HIE 1,334 — 1,334
326,386 - 326,386
Current assets mEEE
Inventories 263 1,667 — 1,667
Trade receivables EKE SER 19,153 — 19,153
Deposits, prepayments and other RE « BAREREMEL
receivables B 37,685 (2,500) 35,185
Amounts due from related companies  [EMEE A AIFIE 993 — 993
Cash held at non-bank financial RIERITEREEMFRE
institutions 1 — 1
Bank balances and cash BOEBERE 143,007 — 143,007
202,506 (2,500) 200,006
Current liabilities Vit =N
Transfer fee payables EEeE 3,802 — 3,802
Trade payables ERESER 26,284 — 26,284
Accruals and other payables JEET IR K E B (5K 78,190 (24,629) 53,561
Deferred capital grants BB AR 752 — 752
Amount due to former directors S 10,780 — 10,780
Deferred income BN 22,500 — 22,500
Borrowings £ 133,296 165,000 298,296
Income tax payable BRI FiEH 23,757 - 23,757
299,361 140,371 439,732
Net current liabilities nEEETE (96,855) (142,871) (239,726)
Total assets less current liabilites  EEAERGDAER 229,531 (142,871) 86,660
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=

For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—LE—hFNA=T1THIFE

4. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (Continued)

(e)

Consolidated statement of financial position as

at 30 June 2014 (Continued)

4. DURAFEZAEZm
RoB-mMEAA=+BEZE

(e)

30 June 2014
(As previously

BUBRRE(E)

Effect of
prior year's

restated) adjustments

30 June 2014
(As restated)

—T-mE —E—mEF
~A=TH NEEE ~NA=TH
(FRAEZF) BB TS (f=51)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Transfer fee payables ENEeE 704 — 704
Accrual and other payables JEET IR Kt fE (T 5k 521 — 521
Deferred capital grants BRARER 22,298 — 22,298
Borrowings 1 834 — 834
Deferred tax liabilities EREFBRE 39,994 — 39,994
64,351 — 64,351
NET ASSETS EEFE 165,180 (142,871) 22,309
Capital and reserves EXR A
Share capital R 54,811 — 54,811
Reserves M 106,637 (142,871) (36,234)
Equity attributable to equity holders ARAIER NEGER
of the Company 161,448 (142,871) 18,577
Non-controlling interests kR 3,732 - 3,732
TOTAL EQUITY e 165,180 (142,871) 22,309
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n o B A R R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE - F-AFAA=HLEFE

4. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (continued) 4. DEFEEZ2RAE %)
(f) Consolidated statement of financial position as (f) R=ZB—=FtA—-HAZ&HSE
at 1 July 2013 B RSk &
1 July 2013 Effect of
(As previously  prior's year's 1 July 2013
reported) adjustments (As restated)
—E-=F —E-=F
+A—-H NEEE +A—H
(FRIAEZF) BB 2 (&%)
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment I ER S 264,119 — 264,119
Intangible assets BVEE 37,896 — 37,896
Deposits, prepayments and other Be - BRFEREMER
receivables HIE 83 — 83
302,098 — 302,098
Current assets mEEE
Inventories 263 2,225 — 2,225
Trade receivables EKE SER 93,687 — 93,687
Deposits, prepayments and other RE « BAREREMEL
receivables A 15,705 — 15,705
Amounts due from related companies  [EMEE A AIFIE 1,249 — 1,249
Cash held at non-bank financial RIERITEREEMFRE
institutions 1 — 1
Bank balances and cash BOIEBERE 49,996 — 49,996
162,863 — 162,863
Current liabilities Vit =N
Transfer fee payables ErEeE 8,428 — 8,428
Trade payables ERESER 28,705 — 28,705
Accruals and other payables FEET IR K E B (5K 75,324 (18,445) 56,879
Deferred capital grants BB AR 672 — 672
Amount due to former directors BT AT EEHE 5,198 — 5,198
Deferred income BN 23,770 — 23,770
Borrowings ) 178,442 — 178,442
Amount due to directors ERNESHE 544 — 544
Income tax payable FERFTEH 418 — 418
321,501 (18,445) 303,056
Net current liabilities hEAEFE (158,638) 18,445 (140,193)
Total assets less current liabilites ~ EEZAERTHEE 143,460 18,445 161,905
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=

For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—LE—hFNA=T1THIFE

4.

PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (continued) 4. DURAFEZAEZm
(f) Consolidated statement of financial position as (f) R-EB—=5+tA—A2Z&&
at 1 July 2013 (Continued) BEMRRR(E)
1 July 2013 Effect of
(As previously  prior's year's 1 July 2013
reported) adjustments (As restated)
“E—=F —Z-=F
+HA—H NEEE +H—H
(BAE251) REITE (f=51)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred capital grants BRERER 20,600 — 20,600
Borrowings BE 2,025 — 2,025
Amount due to directors ERESHE 182,808 — 182,808
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAR 37,296 — 37,296
242,729 — 242,729
NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) BE/(BE)FE (99,269) 18,445 (80,824)
Capital and reserves EXR A
Share capital AR 38,878 — 38,878
Reserves i (138,407) 18,445 (119,962)
Equity attributable to equity holders ANAER NEGER
of the Company (99,529) 18,445 (81,084)
Non-controlling interests iR 260 - 260
CAPITAL DEFICIENCY EXEH (99,269) 18,445 (80,824)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. FE&FHEXE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention. They are presented
in HK$ and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain key assumptions and
estimates. It also requires the directors to exercise its
judgements in the process of applying the accounting
policies. The areas involving critical judgements and areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to these
financial statements, are disclosed in note 6 to the financial
statements.

It 47 & T R TH IR IR SE X ANE
e - W EHREWBRRDIRETLE
5 BB BENERAAZRER
T - ESBRAERIN o

REFABBUBRE LR ZHBR
RARAETEEBRRERIMEE - KB
KREFRERAZFETHE 2 BRET
YR HIEN - %2505 B iR HI B~ #8E
EREUEH BRI = BEALBR
RAFTER - — S EMBRKRME
6
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B 3R B

For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—F—AFNA=T1THIFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
30 June. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. The Group has power over an entity
when the Group has existing rights that give it the current
ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties, to determine whether it has control. A potential
voting right is considered only if the holder has the
practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair
value of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii)
the Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary
plus any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary
and any related accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve.

5.

FESHBE®)

RS SR MBEHRREERAZE
ZETBEREIIT -
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BT EZFORE - BIAREEZES
ZER - BEARBEZRERIETH
BRiIZEZREEEB(BIARTEER
Bl %75 ) 2 e 1 BIAREE S
HERERES -

FERHEE IR - AEEEEEEE
ERERNUREMALRHE ZBER
R NETERTHEAESRE -2
EREARERTEECERERZE
R TEEEEERN -

MEARZRE HEEFIREBEARS
EEREGAAR  BEEZEMNERLE
ZBEBEIBEA AR -

HE RN E QR ERERAZ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=

For the year ended 30 June 2015

BE—

5.

A FNA=FHIUFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as an allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between the non-controlling
shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

5.

FESTBE®)

FEREB(E)
SERARAMZRS - BHREAREHR
AT IALEE - BRIER BRI O EE
BERBRECERE  RAEREBEIT
TLARSH o B AR 2 T BUREY
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BRANZ R —2K

FFERERIEAR B TERREKE
HZ M B AR - IFERERTIN
RAMBRARRGAEREHRZ
BEANZY - REEaEaREMEME
Wes kA - FRIE RS /£§|J7éjﬂ5m/m
) kB 18 K 2 T MK 25 A BB A SRR AR A
REARNBEAAZBZAE °

B kA E RSSO RBRA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B 3R B

For the year ended 30 June 2015

HEZ

5.

E—AFNA=THIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Foreign currency translation

(0

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Group’s presentation currency. The functional
currency of the Group’s entities in Hong Kong is
HK$ and for those subsidiaries established in the
U.K. is GBP. The directors consider that choosing
HK$ as the presentation currency best suits the
needs of the shareholders and investors.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at
the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised
in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

5.

FESHBE®)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n = B 7S R R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—LE—hFNA=T1THIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation currency
as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the exchange
rates on the transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the foreign currency translation
reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in foreign
entities and of borrowings are recognised in the
foreign currency translation reserve. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange differences are
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as part of
the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B 3R B

For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—F—AFNA=T1THIFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination.
The cost of acquisition is measured at the acquisition-
date fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued, liabilities incurred and contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess
of the Company’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase which is attributed to the Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated profit
or loss. The fair value is added to the cost of acquisition to
calculate the goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity
interest in the subsidiary were recognised in other
comprehensive income (for example, available-for-sale
investment), the amount that was recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised on the same basis
as would be required if the previously held equity interest
were disposed of.

5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=

For the year ended 30 June 2015

BE—

5.

E—FFENA=FHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination and goodwill (Continued)
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that it might be impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. The method of
measuring impairment losses of goodwill is the same as
that of other assets as stated in the accounting policy
below. Impairment losses of goodwill are recognised
in consolidated profit or loss and are not subsequently
reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition for the purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are
initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s
identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

2% — 10%
Leasehold improvements 20%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20% — 33%
Motor vehicles 20%

Freehold land and buildings
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B 3R B

For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—F—AFNA=T1THIFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

The Group as lessee

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payment (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the term.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as
finance leases. At the commencement of the lease term,
a finance lease is capitalised at the lower of the fair value
of the leased asset and the present value of the minimum
lease payments, each determined at the inception of the
lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
statement of financial position as finance lease payable.
Lease payments are apportioned between the finance
charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The
finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease
term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the same as
owned assets
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=

For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—LE—hFNA=T1THIFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-
out basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid is recognised in profit or loss.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market and are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment. An allowance for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of receivables. The amount
of the allowance is the difference between the receivables’
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition. The amount of the
allowance is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
and recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the
receivables’ recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the
receivables at the date the impairment is reversed shall not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to
an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents.
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5.

E—FFENA=FHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An
equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Convertible loans

Convertible loans which entitle the holder to convert the
loans into a fixed number of equity instruments at a fixed
conversion price are regarded as compound instruments
consist of a liability and an equity component. At the
date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is
estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible debt. The fair value of any derivative
features embedded in the compound instruments is
included in the liability component. The difference between
the proceeds of issue of the convertible loans and the fair
values assigned to the liability component, representing
the embedded option for the holder to convert the loans
into equity of the Group, is included in equity as capital
reserve. The liability component is carried as a liability at
amortised cost using the effective interest method until
extinguished on conversion or redemption. The derivative
components are measured at fair value with gains and
losses recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and
equity components of the convertible loans based on their
relative carrying amounts at the date of issue. The portion
relating to the equity component is charged directly to

equity.

Convertible bonds that are not redeemable and the bond
holders are required to convert the bonds into share capital
before its maturity date are classified as equity.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Acquired players’ registrations

Costs of acquisition of players’ registrations are initially
recognised at cost at the date of acquisition and amortised
over the period of the respective player's contract,
being between one to five years. A provision is made in
accruals, where in management’s opinion, the club is likely
to achieve a contractually agreed number of first team
appearances. Where the outcome of this is uncertain, the
maximum amount payable is disclosed as a contingent
liability.

For the purposes of impairment testing, acquired players’
registration are classified as a single cash generating unit
until the point at which:

° it is made clear that the player no longer remains
as an active member of the playing squad. In these
circumstances the carrying value of the players’
registration is reviewed against a measureable net
realisable value; or

° the carrying amount of a registration will be
recovered through sale. The measurement of such
registration is at the lower of (i) fair value (less costs
of disposal) and (ii) carrying value. Amortisation
of such registration is suspended at the time of
reclassification,although impairment charges still
need to be made if applicable.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Deferred income

Deferred income relates to amounts received from
sponsorships and sale of season tickets and is released
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period to
which it relates.

Capital grants

Grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and the grants will be received.

Grants and donations received in respect of safety work
and stadium developments are initially recognised as
deferred capital grants in the consolidated statement of
financial position and transferred to profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the assets to which they relate.
Football Trust grants received are released to profit or loss
when the related expenditures are incurred.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenues from the sales of goods are recognised on the
transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when the goods
are delivered and the title has passed to the customers.

Season tickets and corporate hospitality revenue are
recognised over the period of the football season as home
matches are played.

Gate receipts and other matchday revenue are recognised
as the games are played. Prize money in respect of cup
competitions is recognised when received. Sponsorship
and similar commercial income is recognised over the
duration of the respective contracts. The fixed element of
broadcasting revenues is recognised over the duration
of the football season whilst facility fees received for
live coverage or highlights are taken when earned. Merit
awards are recognised only when known at the end of the
football season.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Services income is recognised when services are rendered.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Employee benefits

(0

(i)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or
loss represents contributions payable by the Group
to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on
that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining
a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit
or loss because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis.

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company or of a parent of
the Company.

(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members
of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

5.

FESHBE®)

BiR(E)

ERRENTRNFAHAAHRIAER
EHEAMNIAE EEE - WP KRR
—HIEEERMRZ ISR BRERE
BRI FEEEGEE AN NAEE
KEER - AEEHBREENRBER
BRI -

BT
R VERAEEAREB 2 ATHE

o

)
i

(A)  fHEBATAL  BIZALZHZ
ATREORKEEAKEH
AR -

(i) 7 il 3k B 12 5l AN &
EI

(i) HAEBBEKNY
255

(i) RARARHARRAE
AMETEEEEX

o

m > aF

\
’

(B) WA THIEMGRYE - BNERE
SRR 5 RE R

(i) ZEREARAER
—&B KB RFA (A
BEHRE - HERQA
Ko [7] 3 B B X R 4R
&6 Bt o

(i —HAEBRZ—EE
M ERARA 2D
X(EAE—EBA/KE
RAIZEBETHKE
RAZBERARE

BRg) -

BIRMINGHAM INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED (RECEIVERS APPOINTED) IR IR HIZRBR AR (EZEEEA)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=

For the year ended 30 June 2015
ﬁ;;:/\ﬁ 7LL/LL*ﬁ

BE—

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies: (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If the
Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (A).

A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a Group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Company or to a
parent of the Company.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or not
yet available for use are reviewed annually for impairment
and are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount
may not be recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets,
except inventories and receivables to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset or cash-generating unit in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements when material.

5.
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For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—F—AFNA=T1THIFE

6.

CRITICAL JUDGMENT AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the financial statements (apart from those involving
estimations, which are dealt with below).

(a) Going concern basis
These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of
which depends upon the financial support of Trillion
Trophy at a level sufficient to finance the working
capital requirements of the Group. Details are
explained in note 2b to financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
The Group determines the estimated useful lives
and residual values for the Group’s property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives and
residual values of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. The Group will revise
the depreciation charge where useful lives and
residual values are different to previous estimates,
or will write off or write down technically obsolete or
on strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold..
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6.

CRITICAL JUDGMENT AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
This requires an estimation of the recoverable
amount which was determined by either based
on fair value less cost of disposal method. The
fair value of the assets were determined by
management based on recent market transactions.
The market approach involves a direct comparison
of the assets being appraised to similar assets that
have sold in the same or in a similar market.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The directors of the Company periodically review
its receivables to assess whether impairment exists.
In determining whether impairment should be
provided, the directors of the Company evaluated
individually each account for impairment after taking
into account the value of each client account’s
underlying collateral and the latest financial position
of those clients in default of settlement.

Player transfer costs

Management have to make certain judgments as to
whether a liability should be recognised under the
terms of the contracts with other football clubs in
respect of player transfers. This includes whether
in the managements’ opinion, at the end of the
reporting period, the football club is likely to retain
Championship league status in the next season.
It also requires certain judgments as to whether a
player will continue to make the contractually agreed
number of first team appearances. Based on these
judgments, management will decide on a player
by player basis as to whether the liability should
be disclosed as a contingent liability in Note 37(i)
or whether it becomes a liability and is recognised
in trade payables in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

6.
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For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—F—AFNA=T1THIFE

6.

CRITICAL JUDGMENT AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(e)

()

Intangible assets — acquire players’ registration
At the end of each reporting period, the
management considers the recoverability of the
acquired players’ registration based on current
estimated fair values. Management considers the
economic life of the players’ registration to be
between one to five years, based on the respective
players’ contracts. These are reviewed annually
on a player by player basis to determine whether
there are indicators of impairment. Determining
whether the players’ registration should be impaired
at the end of the reporting period is based on
management’s judgment of whether the player will
no longer remain an active member of the playing
squad and an assessment of the football club’s
likeliness to retain Championship league status in
the next season.

Intangible assets — trademark

In accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”,
the Group completed its annual impairment test for
trademark by comparing their recoverable amount
to its carrying amount as at 30 June 2015. The
Group has conducted a valuation of the trademark
based on its fair value less cost of disposal. The
resulting value of the trademark as at 30 June 2015
was approximately equal to their carrying amount.
This valuation uses the relief from loyalty method
to determine the present worth of future after-tax
royalties derived from ownership. Management
believes that any reasonably foreseeable change in
any of the above key assumptions would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount of trademark to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount.

6.
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7.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing loans, and cash and cash equivalents.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
funding for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities, such as trade and
bills receivables and trade and bills payables, which arise
directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board reviews and agrees
on policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below:

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk means the risk of fluctuations in
the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments
which arise from changes in exchange rates. The Group’s
business are mainly located in the U.K. and are mainly
transacted and settled in GBP, so the Group has minimal
exposure to foreign currency risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk means the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Group did not
have any long-term loans with a floating interest rate during
the years ended 30 June 2015 and 2014, so the Group was
not exposed to the risk of changes in market interest rates.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the cash and bank balances,
trade and other receivables, included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the Group’s
financial assets.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
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For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—F—AFNA=T1THIFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7.

(Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities is
as follows:

At 30 June 2015

cHERERE )

REE TR

AEEZBRBEHNESR BB RAH
RBESTFE  UBRHERSEHIR
eEE - BNEEARREHZRY

REBEzeRAEECHBHE SN
T

R-E-a"FAA=1H

Within In the third

1 year or on In the to fifth years,
demand  second year inclusive Total

RE=F

R—ERZH AERE
REX RE-F (BFEEMT) @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Transfer fee payables ErEeE 1,007 174 122 1,393
Trade payables EREZRA 14,910 - - 14,910
Accruals and other payables et FE R EM N 0 47,634 - - 47,634
Amounts due to former directors N RIEEFIE 10,769 - - 10,769
Borrowings & 139,974 43,844 25 183,843
Interest portion of borrowings EEZFEEHS 3,500 1,767 3 5,270
217,884 45,785 150 263,819

At 30 June 2014 (Restated) Ro-FE—mENF=+H(ZE%H)

Within In the third to

1 year or on In the fifth years,
demand second year inclusive Total

RE=

R—ER%k HERE
REX REZF (BEEERT) =t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FET
Transfer fee payables ENEeE 3,802 704 — 4,506
Trade payables B EZER 26,284 — — 26,284
Accruals and other payables FEET SR8 & E A fE T3R8 53,561 521 — 54,082
Amounts due to former directors ~ EffRIEZ A 10,780 — — 10,780
Borrowings e 298,296 589 245 299,130
Interest portion of borrowings e 2R EHD 5,962 31 13 6,006
398,685 1,845 258 400,788
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The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their respective

fair values.

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. TEREREE#®
(Continued)
Categories of financial instruments ERMTEZER
2015 2014
—E-RF —T—EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
(Restated)
(&E5)
Financial assets: SRMEE
Loans and receivables: R KR ERFIE
Trade receivables B E 5 BRI —HAE5T 12,274 19,153
Financial assets included in deposits, HAEE - BERK
prepayments and other receivables HthElh Rz e MEE 8,652 2,493
Cash held at non-bank financial institutions R IERTTE BB FTRIR S 1 1
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRREIRS 58,815 143,007
79,742 164,654
Financial liabilities: THEE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: REERAZERAR
Transfer fee payables EEes 1,393 4,506
Trade payables FERTE SRR 14,910 26,284
Accruals and other payables FE 5T RIE K H A FE S 5RIE 47,634 54,082
Amounts due to former directors EffRIEZEE A 10,769 10,780
Borrowings BE 183,843 299,130
258,549 394,782
Fair values AF{E

REPBEARRRAPTIIANEE 2 &/
BERTRABZEREERESS
ZRAFERE
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8.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowance and
exclude value added tax or other sales related taxes.

The Group’s revenue and contribution to profit were mainly
derived from its professional football operation in the
U.K., which is regarded as a single reportable segment
in a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s senior management
for purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment. In addition, the principal assets employed by
the Group are located in the U.K.. Accordingly, no segment
analysis is presented other than entity-wide disclosures.

Wzt & 7 &P E
Wamre Rk B KBz 2 FER
B Wame sl EFRE - BNk
HpBEURREEL R - BT B3EE
BRI EMHEERETIEA o

AEBEWSE RGN ERMERRE
HRNRBEREERRREY  WEH
WRBE A REDAL - REDEZ
RHAAEAEREREFL 2R
ERAARAEER B UERER
DEERFER G - B KEFAZ
TREEMNREE - At - FREREK
BN BEE DD MM o

Entity-wide disclosures BEREE

Information about the nature of revenue BNt E &R
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Television broadcasting BERERE 149,490 151,067
Commercial income EEILPN 56,188 56,886
Matching receipts HREWA 47,906 45,274
253,584 253,227

BIRMINGHAM INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED (RECEIVERS APPOINTED) IR IR HIZRBR AR (EZEEEA)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n = B 7S R R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2015
B2 _F A FANA=THIEFE

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 8.

(Continued)

Geographical information

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers and non-current assets is presented based on
the location of operations and geographical location of
assets respectively.

WsERkoIBER )
EER

BERAKERBINDE P 2 W K3k
MBEEZER D BIRIBE L E
REEZMEZ5]

Revenue from external

customers
for the year ended Non-current assets
30 June At 30 June
REIBEF 2 W@ FRBEE
BEANA=THLEE RAB=+H
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-HE —TNF ZFB-—FHF _—ZTUF

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET FAET FBET
Hong Kong B — — 3,272 4,728
United Kingdom B
(place of domicile) (&E@ATEM) 253,584 253,227 286,019 321,658
253,584 258,227 289,291 326,386
Information about major customers EHEEXEEFZEH

No revenue was received from customers contributing
more than 10% of the total revenue of Group for the two
years ended 30 June 2015 and 2014.

HE_Z—RAFE=-ZT—NF~A
=+ HIEMESE - BERERNEP
Wz W b AN B A S E 58 2 10%
LAE ©
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For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE - F-AFAA=HLEFE

9.

OTHER INCOME 9. H Al A
2015 2014
—EB-IF —E-mE
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HtaF FET FET
(Restated)
(#=:7)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWZE - MEMEHEZ
equipment Wiz 63 230
Interest income FLEWA 137 142
Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries  H#SEMHTE A 7 2 U — 419
Compensation from player injury RESERR ZEE
insurance 11,024 —
Reverse of excess provision for Donation 82 iA %8 & i < #[ml (i) 13,069 6,584
Net gain on proposed settlement HpE N R 2 F W E
with a vendor (ii) 6,500 —
Subsidies received from the Premier BRBES MBS
League (iii) 6,024 6,178
Sundry income WA 906 1,616
37,723 15,169
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BE=—LE—hFNA=T1THIFE
9. OTHER INCOME (continued) 9. HUr A )
(i) As explained in Note 4(a) of this consolidated financial (i) E&ﬁﬂ$,ﬁ$é\ﬁﬂ%#&i€m T 4(a) AT
statements, prior year adjustments have been made i BERMEE—_T—=FA
to reverse accrued donation of HK$18,045,000 and —+H¢¢f&§ti_i M
HK$6,584,000 up to year ended 30 June 2013 and 30 June FERNA=THILFEZEER
2014, and accrued donation of HK$13,069,000 has been 18,045,000/ 7t % 6,584,000 /%
reversed during the year ended 30 June 2015. TENFEEEAE  SHE_Z
—RFRNA=THIEFERS
£ 13,069,000 L E F#[E o
(ii) As at 30 June 2014, the Group recorded trade payable of (ii) RZZFE—WOFASA=+H " &&
HK$10,000,000 and trade receivable of HK$8,500,000 due B 8% 15 B — R AT IE A& B 75 B B
to/from a vendor which is a third party not related to the ME=FtErm([HER])AE
Group (the “Vendor”). Subsequent to the year-end date of £ & 5 B 10,000,000/ 7T &
2015, the Group had accepted an offer of HK$5,000,000 & W & 5 Bk 78,500,000% T °
from the Vendor in full and final settlement of the above RZZE-—RAFFEHRRE K&
sums, together with other fees and charges, resulting in a BEEXZEEERHEEZHREE
net gain of HK$6,500,000 from this proposed settlement 5,000,000 7T * ASE2/EE Ll
with the Vendor. Entering into the proposed settlement is KB AREMERARKE - B
subject to court approval. hERERAREENEERIFTE
4 % W 256,500,000 7T © 5% 52
EANER 2 BT ADB AR B B -
(iii) During the year ended 30 June 2015, the Group’s (iii) REBEE_T—RAFSA=1+AHI1
professional football operation received funding of FE - Z’KE.ZHA&%%EETE@
approximately HK$6,024,000 (2014: HK$6,178,000) from BT IERRRGMERR - REBR
the Premier League under the Elite Player Performance WK ERBASERBBEBRE
Plan upon fulfillment of certain term and conditions. RGBS E £ #46,024,000 %8
(= & — @ 4 : 6,178,000 %
JL) °
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BBHRA
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZE—mE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Interest expenses on: LATFEEZFERX
— Bank loan and overdraft repayable — ARAFREEZ
within five years IRITERRBEL 23 61
— Other borrowings repayable within five — — BRAERNEEZ
years HibfEE 421 18,148
— Finance leases — BEMEAL 31 58
475 18,267
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11. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 1. FIBHGER) BX
2015 2014
—E-EF —E-mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Corporation taxation — U.K. BB — &E

Current year REEZ 54 22,693

Deferred taxation — U.K. IEFEFRIE — T
Current year KEE (350) —
Attributable to a change in tax rate TR EFTEL (3,175) (1,661)
(3,471) 21,032
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as HRAEBREEZZE—AFR=ZF
the Group had no assessable profits arising from Hong —OFERNA=THIEMEFELER
Kong for the two years ended 30 June 2015 and 2014, BERELERRTOGEN - WL ERES

MERIEHRME -

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the Hipalh R EL 2 IR A B AA
rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions. 2 BITREE -

The Group’s subsidiaries in the U.K. are subject to REBERER 2 KB RQTAMNHER
Corporation Tax in the U.K. (“Corporation Tax”). rERIEER])) BHE-_ZT—H
Corporation tax is calculated at 21% of the estimated FERAZTRHIEFE - BERIIRG
assessable profit for the year ended 30 June 2015 (2014: STERBEAN 2 21% (ZF —M4F ¢
23%). 23%)5T&E -
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11.

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 11.

(Continued)

The income tax (credit)/expense for the year can be

reconciled to the loss before taxation per the consolidated

FrE#(ER) BX#@)

AFEMEHER), /P AT EBRER
ERE&EMEE RS R Z IR AE

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income BYERMT :
as follows:
2015 2014
—E-RF —E-mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FBT
Loss before taxation B 7 Bl &S 18 (7,879) (139,549)
Taxation calculated at respective domestic AR AHEFE TR E 2
statutory tax rate 1A (680) (27,129)
Effect of a change in tax rate HEREgH o8 (3,175) (1,661)
Tax effect of income not taxable and BAERBIART AT S H
expenses not deductible IR R 3,697 5,135
Capital contribution &R = 44,687
Tax effect of temporary differences not AERERE5E
recognised ZRRIE T E 1,105 —
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not A AERERTIEEE 2
previously recognised Mg & (4,418) —
Income tax (credit)/expense TS (k) Fx (3,471) 21,032

Details of the deferred taxation are set out in Note 33.

TR 2 IS HNHIFE33
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For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—F—AFNA=T1THIFE

12.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Loss for the year is arrived at after charging the following

12. XEEFEE
AN [ BRI LA TR IR R B -

items:
2015 2014
—EB-IfF —E-mE
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Mtat FET FET
(Restated)
(&E5)
Staff costs (including directors' BEINAN(BRREEEFZ
remuneration): <) :
Salaries and wages TERF® 170,495 248,164
Retirement benefits scheme RN ET B 2 K
contributions 16,195 25,864
186,690 274,028
Auditors' remuneration ZEET B &
— Current year — RFE 1,020 2,191
Minimum lease payments under KEMLIBT 2
operating leases in respect of: EHEHES
— properties /3 3,427 3,915
— others — H 3,088 3,566
Cost of inventories recognised as ERAERLZ 2
expense FERKA 6,787 7,053
Cost on operating expenses £ S AR (i) 266,369 355,054
Depreciation of property, plant WE - BE &
and equipment FEITE 16,482 11,408
Amortisation of intangible assets mIEEREE 4,859 4,786
Impairment of trade receivables BUE SRR ZIRE 1,438 28
Impairment of amount due from related Rt AT KRR
companies VERED 993 —
Impairment of amount due from a —HBIEEERKZ
former director BE 1,500 —
Impairment of property, plant and M BENMEREZ
equipment RIE 1,166 —
Foreign exchange loss (net) SMNEE1E CF ) 3 —
Provision for loss of suspected REMBBES 2 BEREE
mis-appropriated funds (i) 9,643 27,900

(i Cost on operating expenses included HK$186,630,000
(2014 (restated): HK$267,606,000) relating to staff costs,

depreciation expenses and operating lease charges, which

amount is also included in the respective total amounts

disclosed separately above for each of these types of

expense.

(i) KERIKAS BRE
186,630,000/ 7L(= & — Y
F (L ES]) : 267,606,000 7%
TLOHEBIRA TEMRZ R
KEHRERE - LERATE
2B RN ERPIRERA
BRI B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=

For the year ended 30 June 2015
B2 —TE—FhFNA=-1THIFE

12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

(if)

On 19 January 2015, the Company announced that the
then board of directors of the Company discovered
that a former employee of the Company may have
misappropriated a sum of at least HK$30 million (the “First
Suspected Misappropriation”). On 22 January 2015,
another announcement was made concerning a further
sum of approximately HK$8 million being misappropriated
by the same former employee (the “Second Suspected
Misappropriation”). The aggregate amount associated
with the suspected misappropriation was approximately
HK$38 million.

Upon the current management’s investigation, including
reviewing copies of bank statements and cheques, at least
HK$37.5 million was suspected to be misappropriated,
out of which HK$35.25 million was suspected to be
misappropriated by the former employee as mentioned
earlier. The Company has reported the First Suspected
Misappropriation and Second Suspected Misappropriation
to the Hong Kong Police Force (the “Police”) for
investigation. The Police arrested the former employee
on 17 January 2015, but no charges have been laid
against the former employee so far. He was subsequently
released on bail. As far as the current board of directors
of the Company is aware, up to the date of the release of
this Report, the suspected misappropriation is still under

investigation by the Police.

In accordance with the period for the suspected
misappropriation of funds, HK$27,900,000 was provided
for the previous financial years up to 30 June 2014 and
HK$9,643,000 was provided for the year ended 30 June
2015.

12. REEEB@®)

(if)

%:ﬁ—ﬂﬁ—ﬁ+hﬁ'$
RNAIEM  ARRERZES
=B I AA R AE 8 7T s
3 & 4> 30,000,000 7% 7T 7 &
([FE—RERBA]) - A=
—HE—A-+-8 AR
AIBEM - ZAREE AN
& /7 & 4> 8,000,000 78 Tt 7k
H([EoxEmBWA] - 2
MR RIS A A A B EL
/438,000,000 77T,

Wﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ§M@Vﬁ
THRERIZEAR)E &b
37,500,000 7 7T 2 5% 2 1 #5
2 A & 435,250,000
%ET E40_E ATl % A B
EEMA - RRARIEMBEBE
%Eqﬁﬁﬁnﬁﬁ%—
BRI A R 58 = IR RR A A A
%ﬂéoiﬁﬁ\_; ak:d
—AttBER#EZBRES -
HESEARRZAAES R

iz - HHBREERFREZS
MTEN - iARRREES

S BETEARFHRAH
';WFWEMI%W%

1738

W

EREAMERITAES 28
EHRE A Ee+R A
27,900,000 TR EBZE=-Z
—ERNA=THIEUERE
Eﬁf’ﬁﬁéfﬁ » 59,643,000
TTREBE_E—hF~NA=T
Eti&%%ﬁo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B 3R B

For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—F—AFNA=T1THIFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 13. %%&EEHE&AEZ@H

EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ emoluments EEZHe
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors FRENKENSES 2T
during the year were as follows:
For the year ended 30 June 2015 BE-_ZT—HFEAA=1THLEE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances and scheme
Fees  benefits in kind contrlbutlons Total
% 28R
ik EYEH ‘fiﬂ,\%{ Eh
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Wit FAT FAT AT FAT
Executive Directors 182
Mr. Liu Yiu Keung Stephen (Chairman) BRakE(1E)
(appointed on 9 March 2015) (JA_A—ﬁE ANBEZf) — — = =
M. Yen Ching Wai David BEALE
(Chief Executive Officer) ( mﬁ”ﬁﬁ
(appointed on 9 March 2015) (R=Z-RE=ANBEZ) - - - -
Ms. Koo Chi Sum BE ”/Dﬁi
(appointed on 9 March 2015) (R=Z-RF=ANBEZHE) - = = =
Mr. Cheung Shing b3
(resigned on 9 March 2015) (N=B-RE=ANARHT) = 1,800 12 1,812
Mr. Ma Shui Cheong 5iha %E
(resigned on 9 March 2015) (N=B-RE=ANBEHT) - 1,800 12 1,812
Mr. Chen Liang Rtk
(resigned on 9 March 2015) (R=F-RE=ANBREM) - 1,350 12 1,862
Mr. Panagiotis Pavlakis ago is Pavlakis %£
(retired on 6 January 2015, appointed on (RZF-RE-AABRE
7 January 2015 and RZZ-RE-AtRRZER
resigned on 9 March 2015) BC Z-LE=RARER) = 630 12 642
Mr. Peter Pannu eter Pan nuﬁ‘ti
(removed on 9 March 2015) UEA S-RE=ANARES) (@) - 3,450 12 3,462
Mr. Chan Shun Wah (removed on RlEEL £
9 March 2015) (R=F-RE=ANAKES) = 495 12 507
Mr. Cheung Kwai Nang FEMAE
(suspended on 9 March 2015 and (R=E-RE=RNAHEEEE
subsequently resigned on 11 March ABR-Z-RE=A+—AEHT)
2015) - 405 12 a7
- 9,930 84 10,014
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
Mr. Cheung Yuk Ming Eﬁﬁﬁﬁi
(appointed on 9 March 2015) (R=F-RE=ANREZH) 187 - - 187
Mr. Law Pui Cheung BE%E
(appointed on 9 March 2015) (R-Z-RE=ANBEZE) 187 - - 187
Mr. Lai Hin Wing Henry Stephen BERLA
(appointed on 9 March 2015) N (f@:?ﬁiiﬂhﬁ%é&) 187 - - 187

Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson

(suspended on 9 March 2015) S-RE-ANARERRE) 135 - - 135
Mr. Gao Shi Kui
(resigned on 9 March 2015) —F-RE-ANBREM) 120 - - 120
Mr. Liu Enxue
(retired on 6 January 2015, appointed on SR AABRE
7 January 2015 and ﬁi RtBEZER
resigned on 9 March 2015) - HE=RANART) 120 - - 120
Mr. Li Hanguo
(retired on 6 January 2015, appointed on E-RE-AABRA
7 January 2015 and : Tﬁ Rt REZfRR
resigned on 9 March 2015) S-RE= AR 120 - - 120
1,056 - - 1,056
1,056 9,930 84 11,070
(a) The emoluments of Peter Pannu disclosed above include (a) | XCFT # 85 Peter Pannu 2 B &
those for services rendered by him as the former chief BEFEEAQARAITHRAR R
executive officer and managing director of the Company. ERACBIRMRE 2B S -
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For the year ended 30 June 2015

BE =T A FNA=THIFE

13.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 13. EERTETHAE ZM
EMOLUMENTS (continued) cAC ),
Directors’ emoluments (Continued) BEEME(E)
For the year ended 30 June 2014 (Restated) BE-_T—WNFEAA=+HLEFE
(&=75)
Salaries,
allowances and  Retirement scheme
Fees benefits in kind contributions Total
\ LER IR ‘
% EnEH FTalfts st
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Vi3 A1 AT A1 A1
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Cheung Shing (Chairman) RA(LE)
(redesignated on 4 February 2014) (R=Z-mE-AmAEAT) - 2,466 18 2484
Mr. Ma Shui Cheong (Vice Chairman) ShE(EEE)
(redesignated on 4 February 2014) (R=Z-mE-AmAEAT) - 1,660 15 1675
M. Peter Pannu (Chief Executive Officer Peter Pannu i £ (TR ZEZ (3)
and Managing Director) £ - 6,481 15 6,496
Mr. Chan Shun Wah RIEZ% A = 625 15 640
Mr. Cheung Kwai Nang REmAA - 570 15 585
Mr. Chen Liang Rk - 1,466 18 1484
Mr. Panagiotis Pavlakis Panagiotis Pavlakis %
(appointed on 17 December 2013) (RZB-=F+=A+tA
BZfT) - 508 10 518
Mr. Yeung Ka Sing, Carson BRaRE (b)
(resigned on 4 February 2014) (R-E-ME-ARARML) - 357 — 357
Charlie Penn BLRE
(resigned on 5 February 2014) (R=Z-mE-ARRBEM) - 61 3 64
- 14,194 109 14,303
Independent non-executive directors BUF4fES
Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson ERBE 132 = = 132
Mr. Gao Shi Kui EEEE 171 - - 171
M. Liu Enxue HBERE(R-F=Ft-Att
(appointed on 17 December 2013) REZf) 75 — - 7
Mr. Li Hanguo FEARE(N =T -5 1281t
(appointed on 17 December 2013) REZf) 75 - = 75
453 - - 45
453 14,194 109 14,756
(b) Mr Yeung is the former executive director of the Company. () BRERADAFMNITES - 1

The emoluments disclosed during the year ended 30 June
2014 was approximately HK$857,000 of which HK$500,000
has revealed as suspected misappropriation by a former
employee after the investigation of the management.
The emoluments of Mr. Yeung during the year ended 30
June 2014 is restated to approximately HK$357,000 and
recognised as an accrued expense of the Company.

HE-_ZT-—MNENA=THILSF
& T E 2 5B A 4857,000
7B 7T © H 500,000/ L& E R
EBREEFEREERH—BAE
A - BEERBE=_F—NO
FERNAZTHLEFEEZMEEF
B A 4357,000% 7T © I R
BARRZEAHAX -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B 3R B

For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—F—AFNA=T1THIFE

14. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 14.
EMOLUMENTS

The five highest paid individuals in the Group do not

AEREHMAL

REAFEREFE  AEERAERS
FHALIBTERENES - ZFR

include any directors during the year and last year. The

emoluments of the highest paid individual are set out as BEFMALTZBMEnT ¢
below:

2015 2014
—E—hF —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
(Restated)
(&=75)
Basic salaries and allowances e ERREYEF 21,711 79,394
Share-based payments TEAT — —
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RARETEIE R 2,930 10,898
24,641 90,292

RE(ZE—NF: ARE(KET )R
SEHEMALZBMEN FTATEHE

The emoluments of the 5 highest paid individuals (2014: 5
(restated)) fall within the following band:

Number of individuals

AH
2015 2014
—E—fHE —= e
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 77T — 4,000,000 7T 1
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 #7T — 4,500,000 7T 2 —
HK$5,000,001 — HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 &7t — 5,500,000 77T 1 —
HK$6,500,001 — HK$7,000,000 6,500,001 &7 — 7,000,000 37T 1

HK$7,000,001 — HK$7,500,000
HK$9,000,001 — HK$9,500,000
HK$12,000,001 — HK$12,500,000
HK$52,000,001 — HK$52,500,000

7,000,00178 7T — 7,500,00075 7T
9,000,001 %7t — 9,500,000 & 7T
12,000,001 %7t — 12,500,000 % 7T
52,000,001 77T — 52,500,000 & JT

- a NN =

During the years ended 30 June 2015 and 2014, no
emoluments were paid or payable to the five highest paid

RBE_FT-—AFR_FT-—OFXH
=THILEFE  AEEYERARER
BEHMA T RENBEERIMA
AEBERZ RS  JEREKRERM
ZBE{E e

individuals as an inducement to join the Group or as a
compensation for loss of office.
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For the year ended 30 June 2015

HEZ

15.

16.

17.

=N FNA=THIEFE

LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
includes a loss of approximately HK$4,161,000 (2014
(restated): HK$157,430,000) which has been dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for the two years
ended 30 June 2015 and 2014, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting date.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the
loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$4,161,000 (2014 (restated):
HK$157,430,000) and the weighted average number of
8,264,100,432 (2014: 4,506,109,565) ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year
ended 30 June 2015 and 2014 are the same as the basic
loss per share as the impact of the convertible bonds
outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect.

15.

16.

17.

KAREEANEEREE
EiE

RNARHE ANBIERNFEBEEES
474,161,000 70 (=& — M9 & (&
E751) : 157,430,000 7T) * AKX
R Z A IERR PRI ©

Hﬁ /%\

HE-F-AER-F-HFXA
=+ B L MIES IR SHORR
8BS AR RORAE AR

5 o
B

BREE
BREABEBIEANFE 2 AN B H
B AEEEIB 44,161,000/ T(=
T — M FEE E ) : 157,430,000
PEIT) RENB BT EBRINETY
#8,264,100,432 % (= T — 4 4 :
4,506,109,565 % )5t & o

SRR TRRES 2 R
Y UWHERE-T-EFR-T
—mENASTRILEEZ SRS
RS A AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n o B A R R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—F—AFNA=T1THIFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

18. W% - - BMERRE

The Group AEH
Furniture,
fixtures and
Freehold land office
and buildings Leasehold  equipments Motor
KAEE  improvements B £E vehicles Total
thEET  HENREE ARG RE &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000
&L AL T T TET
CoST A
As at 1 July 2013 W-E-=f+A-AH 286,294 657 77,634 3,991 368,576
Addition E 6,859 — 936 5,432 13,227
Disposal it - - (1,921) (623) (2,544)
Exchange realignment R 24,051 - 3,869 247 28,167
As at 30 June 2014 RZE-NmEXA=TA 317,204 657 80,518 9,047 407,426
Addition HE 531 - 1,398 2,580 4,509
Disposal ik = (657) (331) (866) (1,854)
Exchange realignment EHAR (24,126) = (6,006) (316) (30,448)
As at 30 June 2015 RZB-RE/ A=1H 293,609 - 75,579 10,445 379,633
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZitTEREE
AND IMPAIRMENT
As at 1 July 2013 R=E-=%+A-AH 35,609 225 64,998 3,625 104,457
Provided for the year TEERE 4,370 133 6,048 857 11,408
Disposal HE - - (17) (544) (561)
Exchange realignment ERAE 781 - 2,676 210 10,697
As at 30 June 2014 WZE-RmExA=TA 47,790 358 73,705 4,148 126,001
Provided for the year REE &M 10,276 10 4,640 1,456 16,482
Disposal ik = (468) (315) (866) (1,649)
Impairment i = = = 1,166 1,166
Exchange realignment AR (3,537) = (5,473) (269) (9,279)
As at 30 June 2015 RZB-RE A=TH 54,529 — 72,557 5,635 132,721
CARRYING VALUE RaFE
As at 30 June 2014 RZB-WE A=TH 269,414 299 6,813 4,899 281,425
As at 30 June 2015 RZE-RE A=TH 239,080 - 3,022 4810 246,912

The freehold land and buildings were pledged to Trillion
Trophy to obtain loan (Note 32(ii)) (2014: pledged to a
bank to obtain bank loan (Note 32(i))).

KA FERE T 1 R IEFE AR T Trillion
Trophy LA BR 13 B 3R (KT &£ 32(i) (=
T P04 I FIRITUARGETE

K (BFEE32(1))) °
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BE=—LE—hFNA=T1THIFE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. BFREE
Player’s Backlog
Registration contract Trademark Total
REZM BEEH [T @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHET FHET FET FET
COST B
As at 1 July 2013 RZE—=FtH—H 118,315 140,903 543,381 802,599
Addition ANE 6,400 — — 6,400
Disposal e (126,083) — — (126,083)
Exchange realignment ERTEEE S 8,209 — 64,634 72,843
As at 30 June 2014 RZZE—MFESA=FH 6,841 140,903 608,015 755,759
Addition NE 6,437 — — 6,437
Disposal & (241) — — (241)
Lapsed E — (140,903) — (140,903)
Exchange realignment ERREE (445) — (46,255) (46,700)
As at 30 June 2015 R=ZE—RF~ A=tH 12,592 — 561,760 574,352
ACCUMULATED EHE )5 80
AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
As at 1 July 2013 RZE—=FtH—H 116,524 140,903 507,276 764,703
Amortisation for the year AEFEHE 4,786 — — 4,786
Disposal e (125,641) — — (125,641)
Exchange realignment ERTEERS 7,945 — 60,339 68,284
As at 30 June 2014 RZZE—MFSA=FH 3,614 140,903 567,615 712,132
Amortisation for the year AEEEH 4,859 — — 4,859
Disposal & (94) — — (94)
Lapsed E — (140,903) — (140,903)
Exchange realignment [ 5 A= (215) — (43,183) (43,398)
As at 30 June 2015 R=-ZE—RF~ A=tH 8,164 — 524,432 532,596
CARRYING VALUE REFE
As at 30 June 2014 RZZE—NFE~A=1H 3,227 — 40,400 43,627
As at 30 June 2015 RZZE-—RF~A=FH 4,428 — 37,328 41,756
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19.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

0]

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

Backlog contracts
Players’ registration

1 year

based on respective players’
contracts terms from 1-5
years

Trademark Not amortised

The player registration is considered to have a useful life
ranging from 1 to 5 years and is tested for impairment at
the end of the reporting period.

Any players whom BCFC, a subsidiary of the Company,
do not consider to be a long term part of the First Team
squad and who will therefore not contribute to future cash
flows earned by BCFC are assessed for impairment by
considering the carrying value with BCFC's best estimate of
fair value (being post year-end sales proceeds or expected
sales proceeds) less costs of disposal. No impairment was
made for the two years ended 30 June 2015 and 2014.

Backlog contract represents the contract signed between
BCFC and the Football Association Premier League Limited
(“FA Premier”) which BCFC will have the right to receive
an annual income from FA Premier in relation to the income
arrived from television broadcastings, sponsorships, merit
amount determined by the final position at the end of the
premier league season and the facility fees determined
by the number of the matches being broadcasted by FA
Premier. The backlog contract is signed on a yearly basis
and will be renewed before the premier league season
starts each year. Due to the relegation of BCFC, the
backlog contract was not renewed.

The trademark was acquired in the business combination
of BCP, which is considered to have an indefinite useful
life and was tested for impairment as at the end of the
reporting period.

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount
of the trademark for the year ended 30 June 2015. The
recoverable amount has been determined based on its fair
value less costs of disposal, with reference to the valuation
prepared by an independent professional valuer, Grant
Sherman Appraisals Limited. The fair value less costs of
disposal of the trademark falls within level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy. The valuation technique used to measure
the fair value less costs of disposal is the relief-from-royalty
method, which determines the present worth of future
after-tax royalties derived from ownership. Indication of
value is developed by discounting future after-tax royalties
attributable to the trademark to their present worth at
market-derived rate of return appropriate for the risks of the
trademark. The valuer adopted a royalty rate of 10% of net
sales applicable to the trademark as at 30 June 2015. For
determining the discount rate, the valuer adopted a small
capitalization risk premium of 5.78%, company specific risk
premium of 10%, an intangible asset risk premium of 1.0%,
resulting in aggregate pre-tax discount rate of 21.57%.

19.

BIEEE @)

Hisz -
()

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

BENERERAT ¢

BEREEH 1%

KB REEHEREZEH
FEH1-5FFE

g T 8

BREEMZAERFEHRESN
FA1EEF - WRIREHRETH
BRI -

£ A & A 7 K B A AIBCFC T
BABRR—GBHEMA Y
BCFCHREL 2 R R & it = % 2K
BRIZERE G ETRERNS - A
NAEZEREDEEBCFCH AT
BE(BIF4REZHERSHIASK
TEHSHE TS B R E SR A Z
BEGT - HE_ZE-—HEN_
T-NEXNA=THILREFE
L RE -

& B & #) #EBCFC £ Football
Association Premier League
Limited ([FA Premier]) # ]
Z & #1 BCFCi#§ & # HFA
Premier Stk B E1R &% - BB -
BE(REABERTLEREZH
R RERE )RRt ERAGRFA
Premier EifZIHREHBEE)Z
WAWEREE WA - B8RS 1R
FRIT RN GFRBEIEERG
RIAE ] o AN BCFCPE A » #h b
EETEESHN -

PR Ty IRBCPZ 375 & ff o
B RS REERAIEAFEH
W RS HIARETRERR -

AEBEEMIEHE—_Z—h
FRNA=ZTHLEFEEZAKES
Be ROl eBENH2EBLEE
HEMPETEARAAZME
B REQAFERLEKAE
E e AEAFERDERABER
AFEERE=E - ARTER
FERLERAZ HERMTAR
BT REEREE  ZETE
HEERTEE 2 KRG B EFR
EEABNEREE - BERZE
T35 P %2 FE A R PR Bk it 18 45 ST 4
FREZREANEEZRARZ TS
PTERFRRFBPEHIEE - HE
A —_E—HEA=1HRA
IZERA S R EEA 10% B FF i
FHREBEX  RETMEX  HE
B AR T ER & E5.78% -
NRAFERRZEE10% EBRE
ERBHE1.0%  TEEAFER
FAIARIR R 21.57% ©
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For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—LE—hFNA=T1THIFE

20. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

OF THE COMPANY

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 30
June 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

20. RKAFMBATZFHE

ARTR=F-BER-F-MER

A=TRZEEZMBRARAFEMT :

Country of
incorporation Percentage of
and operation Particulars of issued equity attributable to
Name of company ERELR and paid-up capital the Company Principal activity
NAEH R BRIRAREAZE FAARGRERIL EEER
2015 2014
—2-Ef _—T-MF
Directly hold
EERAE
Birmingham City Plc UK. GBP8,150,000 ordinary 96.64% 96.64%  Investment holding
%H 8,150,000 & LA RARK
Indirectly hold
BEEA
Birmingham City UK. GBP752,838 ordinary 96.64% 96.64%  Football club
Football Club Plc B 752,838 HEERR ee
Note: The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company M ERBIIEERREIBPEARF

which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected

the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of the other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

EXELIBRAKREEEFEE
RN ZARARMBRGF - EE
RBRRUEEMMERARZFEE
BHRBBRTITE °
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BE=—F—AFNA=T1THIFE

20. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 20.
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

KATMB AR 2515w

The following table shows information of a subsidiary that
have non-controlling interests (“NCI”) material to the Group.
The summarised financial information represents amounts

before inter-company eliminations.

TREJNERAREE I ER S ([3F
ZERER D 2B AR ZER - M7
BRI ERRABFELEHMN ISR -

Birmingham City Plc.

2015 2014
—E-ERF —ZT—mF
Name £1B
Principal place of business and country F 22 E R R A B U.K. U.K.
of registration HE HEH
% of ownership interests and voting e FE(L B Ot IRk A
rights held by NCI FA IR 3.36% 3.36%
HK$’000 HK$'000
At 30 June: RAA=+AH:
Non-current assets EREEE 286,019 277,674
Currents assets MENEE 104,146 104,086
Current liabilities BB E (249,042) (241,624)
Non-current liabilities FERBAE (54,142) (29,060)
Net assets BEFE 86,981 111,076
Accumulated NCI RET IR e A 2,923 3,732
Year ended 30 June: BZEAA=THLEE:
Revenue e %5 253,584 253,227
Loss for the year NEEEE (7,365) (93,779)
Total comprehensive loss ZHBERE (24,069) (95,564)
Loss allocated to NCI DR E IR 2 BB (247) (3,151)
Net cash generated from/(used in) EEREL (R ZES
operation activities FEE 2,317 (97,033)
Net cash generated from investing REXEBEE 2R EFHE
activities 11,475 111,089
Net cash used in financing activities BEEKERZREFH (14,438) (4,883)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReMRESEFEHIEE
cash equivalents G-V E: V=2 (646) 9,173
BIRMINGHAM INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED (RECEIVERS APPOINTED) {HFASIIREBKIEIRER A (EZTHEEA)
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For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—LE—hFNA=T1THIFE

21. INVENTORIES 7E
2015 2014
—E-RF —ET—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Finished goods and goods for sale EK o & BH & 1,603 1,667

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES

22. EWEZFERX

2015 2014

—E-HF —E-E

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade receivables FEUE 5 RREN 13,862 19,301
Less: Impairment loss recognised J - BRI EEE (1,588) (148)
12,274 19,153

(i) The average credit period of the Group’s trade () REEREKRE SRR 2 TEY

receivables is 90 days (2014: 90 days) and
represents solely from the professional football
operation.

Trade receivables from the sale of player’s
registrations are received in accordance with the
terms of the related transfer agreement. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

EEHABOXR(ZZE—NF :
90K) ' WEREBETEKE
@o

HEBRE G 2 U 5 AR
THAR B AR B R p ik 2 R UK
HR o NS (B30 Bl bt S S B
BEMAERR

% Annual Report 2015

109
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For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—F—AFNA=T1THIFE

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22.

(i) The aging analysis of trade receivables based on
invoice date net of impairment loss is as follows:

FEWE Z R 7

SR B A H MR S RS
187 IS 5 R 32 IR 5T
o :

2015 2014

—E-RF —E—EF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Within 30 days 30 KA 3,658 7,292
31 to 90 days 31E290K 949 975
91 to 180 days 91 £ 180K 1,292 1,113
181 to 365 days 181 £ 365K 1,375 1,273
Over 365 days 365 KA _E 5,000 8,500
12,274 19,153

(iii) At 30 June 2015 and 2014, the analysis of trade
receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
are as follows:

REZZE—RAFRZFT—HFN
A=+8 xaHERREZ
JEWE SR DT ¢

Past due but not impaired

ERBEXHE
Neither past

due nor Less than 91 days
Total impaired 90 days and over
@i RAHRARE DR K NRRULE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 30 June 2015 RZF-RF~A=1A 12,274 4,607 1,292 6,375
At 30 June 2014 R=E-mEXA=TH 19,153 8,267 1,113 9773

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a wide range of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not
impaired relate to a number of independent
customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

REHFRBELZ EWE PR
RERBREEP - REWEN
HAR SRACER

EEMERRE 2 EKE S
RERETRAEERBRIF
FECHBZBIYIEP - REB
E&E - BEERESEAEMLE
LHEMEHRRERYE - o
REEERUEBEAEH LG
RDIRARE R BB D © A5
30 ph ot S RIS A (TR
e
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HK$623,000 as at 30 June 2015 (2014: HK$1,334,000)
relating to sign-on fees for purchases of the players which

are classified as non-current.

23. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND 23. BE - ANREREMWE
OTHER RECEIVABLES WK IE
2015 2014
—ZE-FF — O
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(#&=71)
Other receivables H b JE W R IE 9,057 1,975
Less: impairment loss recognised B BRERR AR (1,500) (475)
7,557 1,500
Deposits and prepayments e MIERFRIE 35,167 35,019
Less: prepayments — non-current JB - TARTEIE — JERED (623) (1,334)
Amounts shown in current assets MEBEEM~NERE 42,101 35,185
Notes: Htat -
(i) The movements in the impairment loss on other receivables (i) G A E M B W R IE 2 R (E B 1R
during the year are as follows BINE :
2015 2014
—E-0F —E-mE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
At the beginning of the year REF) 475 7,112
Recognised during the year FAER 1,500 —
Written off during the year FHliEE (475) (6,637)
At the end of the year RER 1,500 475
During the year ended 30 June 2015, an impairment loss HEZZ-—AFSA=THILF
of HK$1,500,000 (2014: Nil) on other receivables was BER - EiEWRIEBEZREEE
recognised. The Group has individually assessed all other 1,500,000 7T (= — U4 : &)
receivables and provided impairment for the amounts that BETHER - A&EEE@ERFTM®A
are considered not recoverable. B E B GRTE - W BE AR AR (E T
A ez REIREBRE -
(ii) Included in prepayments are amounts of approximately (ii) RZE—RFA~A=1+H " &EfF

X IE B 4E #49623,00078 (= Z
— P04 : 1,334,00087T) © F R
DEAFERBDZBEEREENE
}Eﬁ o
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For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—F—AFNA=T1THIFE

24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED 24. EWEIEARRIE
COMPANIES
Details of amounts due from related companies disclosed RIE DB A AlEH] 25 383(1)(d) 1645
pursuant to Section 383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong Companies BE 7 EWEEN T RIESEN T

Ordinance are as follows:

Maximum amount
outstanding during
the year

FAREERSSH
2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-RF —TNF ZB-HE —TNF
Notes =~ HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Hfat FHET FET FHET FET

Sing Pao Media KR EHEEBRER

Enterprises Limited AR RBREE])

(“Sing Pao Media”) (i) — — — 5,682
Sing Pao Newspaper PR TR A A

Company Limited ([ B ERERFI 1)

(“Sing Pao Newspaper”) (i) 320 320 320 320
Life Profit Asia Limited & F|22M BR A A (i) 673 673 673 673

993 993
Less: Impairment loss JB - ERERIRIE
recognised B (iv) (993) —

= 993
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24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED
COMPANIES (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Sing Pao Media was formerly listed on the Stock Exchange.
On 13 July 2015, pursuant to the Order of the High Court of
Hong Kong, two professionals were appointed as the joint
and several provision liquidators of Sing Pao Media. Sing
Pao Media was wound up by the Court of Hong Kong on 12
August 2015. Following the review and the decision of the
GEM Listing (Review) Committee to cancel the listing states
of Sing Pao Media, the listing states of Sing Pao Media was
cancelled with effect on 18 August 2015.

Sing Pao Newspaper is an indirect subsidiary of Sing
Pao Media. The amount is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

Ms. Wang Li Fei, having beneficial interests in Life Profit
Asia Limited, is a domestic partner of Mr. Yeung, a
substantial shareholder of the Company.

24.

FEWBE N BIFRIE &)

Hit

(i)

(if)

(iii)

B3R B QR B AT BT o =
E-AFtA+=0" REEE
Bl e  MBEXALER
ER IR B0 KR e M6 51 e B
BRA - KBREEN_"F—RF
NATZBREBERERBR - X
AR LEM(ERZEEER
R TE R IH K IR (B A 2 £ i
& RBERZ EHifm—F
—HENA+T/N\BERH -

R R ) 5 R 1 4 2 P P B
AT ZARAREER  RER
AREREE

ARRIZEEREGEEZRE
18 Wang Li Fei Z 1 & FlZz M
BRARIFHA EmiEes o

Movements in impairment loss during the year are as (iv) FAZREBEZHIT -
follows:

2015 2014
=E-RfF —E—mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
(restated)
(IEE5))
At the beginning of the year RE) — 5,682
Recognised for the year REFERER 993 —
Written off during the year FHEE — (5,682)
At the end of the year R 993 —

Based on information available to the current Board
after their appointment on 9 March 2015, the existing
Directors are of the opinion that the amounts due from
related companies are not recoverable, impairment loss of
approximately HK$993,000 was recognised during the year
ended 30 June 2015 (2014: Nil)

ERATEFER _FT—HF=
ANBEZERMEZER &
FEZRA BREEREZK
BAAYE - HE—FT-RHFX
A=tRHLLFEARRBRERBE
#7993,000/% 7L(= & — M 4 :
=) -
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25.

26.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH 25.

Bank balance and cash are denominated in:

RITERERE

RITHEBRRBR S TIATIIEHE :

2015 2014

—E-FHF — =4

HK$ HK$

BT BT

HK$ BT 3,315 82,237
GBP wEE 55,500 60,770
58,815 143,007

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates.

RITBESREARTERNENZS

FRERERANS, o

TRANSFER FEE PAYABLES 26. ENEEE
2015 2014
—E—FE —ZE—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Transfer fee payables ErEe s
— Within one year — —FR 1,097 3,802
— Due after one year — —F1&EIE 296 704
1,393 4,506
All transfer fee payables are stated at amortised cost that FrBREMNES Bz N T EEE &
approximately equal to their fair value. SHAK AN AR o
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27. TRADE PAYABLES 27. ENEZEM

An aged analysis of the trade payables is as follows: ERE SRR ZRROTAT ¢
2015 2014
—E—hfF —T-HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Within 30 days 30 KA 12,358 14,537
31 to 90 days 31290k 2,038 1,650
91 days to 180 days 91E 180K 382 57
181 days to 365 days 181 = 365K 132 40
Over 365 days BB 365 K — 10,000
14,910 26,284
The Group normally receive credit periods from suppliers AEE—RRHEERERGFEH0XR

averaging at 90 days. ZIEEH -

28. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. MESTRIERHMENFIR

2015 2014
—E-AfF —F—UEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
izt FExT FET
(Restated)
€<=vl))
Accruals FEETFIE (i) 47,634 53,561
Agent’s fee payables A& NE A (ii) — 521
47,634 54,082
Less: Amount due after one year J8 - R — &R H 2 FIE — (521)
Amount shown in mEBERERE
current liabilities 47,634 53,561
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B 3R B

For the year ended 30 June 2015

HEZ

28.

29.

30.

BIRMINGHAM INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED (RECEIVERS APPOINTED) {HEA# IR BRIZER B R A

E—AFNA=THIFFE

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. FESTRIERHMESFIE
(Continued) (%)
Notes: Htat -
(i) Included in accruals are amounts of HK$5,353,000 (2014: (i) B REREEHRFESHE
HK$5,353,000) relating to accrued director’s remuneration. Z 3XI8 5,353,000/ (=2 —
4 : 5,353,000 7T) °
(ii) In 2014, agent’'s fee of HK$521,000 was payable for the (i) R-ZE—NF R T —WN4FE
purchase of football players during 2014 and was due after i B Bk 8 e X 3 & 521,000 %
one year according to the transfer agreement of players. T BRBIREZEEHER —
FBFNE -
(iii) Accruals and other payables are all non-interest bearing. (iii) FE &t SR I8 K H i & 5 5RIB 5T
g o
- > =h
DEFERRED CAPITAL GRANTS 29. ELEEAEK
2015 2014
—E-HE T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
To be released: 15 45 #8& Bl 2 38
— within one year — —FR 695 752
— after one year — —F1& 19,907 22,298
20,602 23,050
Deferred capital grants relate to the redevelopment of the BEEBE AR EEFERM N ER
football stadium located in Birmingham, U.K. The grant has AR 2 BRERIEE R - B JIRIER
been treated as a deferred grant and is being amortised in Rk BEEAB A TIHEESE
line with the depreciable assets to which it relates. Ebz: K
AMOUNTS DUE TO FORMER 30. ERAIEERIE
DIRECTORS
2015 2014
—E-EF —PO4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Amounts due to former directors: FERTRIZE = FRIE
Hui Ho Luek, Vico B 5,198 5,198
Yeung Ka Sing, Carson CEE 5,571 5,582
10,769 10,780
The amounts are unsecured, interest free and repayable on ZERESERE  RERARENX
demand. E& -
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31. DEFERRED INCOME 31. EIEWRA
The movements of deferred income for the years ended 30 RIEWARBE-_ZE—HFR_FT
June 2015 and 2014 were as follows: —HERA=THLEFEZEHN
O
Matching Commercial
receipt income Total
RERA BERA #at
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET FAET
At 1 July 2013 R-_ZE—=%+A—H 21,670 2,100 23,770
Exchange realignment [E 5, B 2,471 171 2,642
Additions NE 25,086 23,557 48,643
Recognised as revenue R AW (27,345) (25,210) (62X555)
At 30 June 2014 RZZT—WFRA=TH 21,882 618 22,500
Exchange realignment PE 7 A (1,640) (43) (1,683)
Additions NE 22,020 843 22,863
Recognised as revenue R AW S (19,974) (564) (20,538)
At 30 June 2015 RZZT—RFAA=TH 22,288 854 23,142
32. BORROWINGS 32. &
2015 2014
—E-AF —ZT—F
Notes HK$°’000 HK$'000
iirza FET FAET
(Restated)
(fe&E7)
Secured bank loans BEMBITEK (i) — 2,077
Other loans — secured Hin 53R — BHEA (ii) 43,314 —
Other loans — unsecured Hh B3R — JEH (iii) & (iv) 19,895 132,053
Loan from U-Continent 2K B U-Continent Z B 5% 120,000 165,000
Finance lease payable ENmERE 634 —
183,843 299,130
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32. BORROWINGS (continued) 32. BB
At 30 June 2015 and 2014, total current and non-current R-ZE—RFER_T—WNFEA=F
bank loans and other borrowings were repayable as follows: B "B KEIERSDBITER N EAE

SRR T FHEE

2015 2014
—ZE—HF —Z—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(78 &75)
Carrying amounts repayable: AERREE :
On demand or within one year BEXKK—FA 139,974 298,296
More than one year, but not exceeding —FUE - BRFNUA
five years 43,869 834
183,843 299,130
Less: Amounts due within one year shown & - REBIBEMRIIRA—FER
in current liabilities BB 2 FRIE (139,974) (298,296)
Amounts shown under FIVESERBBEZ
non-current liabilities KRIE 43,869 834
Notes: et
(i) As at 30 June 2014, the secured bank loans carried interest (i) HE-_T-—MNMFEA=+H-F
at floating rates LIBOR+1.5% per annum and are repayable IR ITE R T AR RIT R 3
within one year. The bank loans were secured against the B +1.5% 2 F F R &2 H
Group’s assets in the U.K. amounting to approximately FB - WER—EREE - 85T

HK$269,414,000 and by unlimited multilateral guarantees
given by certain of its subsidiaries in the Group. The
secured bank loans have been settled during the year
ended 30 June 2015.

ERTUAREBRER 2 EER
269,414,000 7T+ AR A& EH
ETHEARIRREZ ER L2
ERERR - GEMBITEHRE
REBEE-_T—AFA=F+AL
FELHE -
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32. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

As at 30 June 2015, the secured other loan from Trillion
Trophy carried interest at 8% per annum and repayable
after 18 months. The loan is secured by (i) a first fixed
legal charge over the property owned by the BCFC with a
carrying value of approximately GBP19,600,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$239,000,000); (ii) a first floating
charge over all the assets, goodwill, undertaking and
uncalled capital, both present and future granted or to be
granted by the BCFC; and (iii) a first fixed charge over all
books and other debts, both present and future granted or
to be granted by the BCFC.

At 30 June 2015, included in the unsecured other loans
was approximately HK$6,000,000 (2014: HK$16,856,000)
loaned from iMerchants Asia Limited (“iMerchants”).
The amount represented a principal of approximately
HK$6,000,000 (2014: HK$10,000,000) and accrued interest
of approximately HK$Nil (2014: HK$6,856,000). The loan
was overdue and carries interest at fixed rates of 0.5% per
annum and penalty interest at 2% per month.

After obtaining leave of the High Count of Hong Kong, the
Group and iMerchants entered in to a deed of settlement
on 8 June 2015 and pursuant to which, the parties agreed
a settlement sum of HK$10,000,000. As at 30 June 2015,
the Group has settled HK$4,000,000. The accrued interest
of HK$6,856,000 up to 30 June 2014 was waived.

At 30 June 2015, included in the unsecured other loans
was approximately HK$13,670,000 (2014: HK$43,884,000)
loaned from China Energy Development Holdings Limited
(“China Energy”). The amounts represented a principal
of approximately HK$13,670,000 (2014: HK$22,782,000)
and accrued interest of approximately HK$Nil (2014:
HK$21,102,000). The loan is overdue and carries interest
at fixed rates of 0.5% per month and penalty interest at 2%
per month.

On 28 May 2015, the Group and China Energy entered into
a deed of settlement and pursuant to which, the parties
agreed a settlement sum of HK$22,782,000. As at 30 June
2015, the Group has settled HK$9,112,000. The accrued
interest of HK$21,102,000 up to 30 June 2014 was waived.

32.

B8 ®)

Hiet - (&)

(if)

(iii)

HE-_ZT—AFA~A=1+H" %
B Trillion Trophy Z & & # £ b
B TIAERIR8% T8 - AR
TNAEABER - ZEERTIMU
(iYStBCFCFr#E R 2 W (AR M A
49 /19,600,000 £ (B & R 4
239,000,000/ 7T )) 2 % —E &
i (I BELXKEHEBCFCHR
" BEBBERAKFMEEE
e A RAEERANE—
FEED R EKHBEHR
BCFCi2ft - BRAE B RAKET
A AR A K E b (T8 A 5 — [ E
SOEHE I o

R-ZZT—AF~A=1+08 " &K
10 E 4t B 318 #5 3R 5 iMerchants
Asia Limited ([iMerchants |) 2
B 7 496,000,000 7t(—ZF—
4 : 16,856,000/ JT ) ° % XA
5 N € #76,000,00078 (= =
— P4 4 : 10,000,000 7T ) K f&
FFBHNTEETL(ZT—MEF:
6,856,000/ 7L ) ° Z E K E &
- WIEEEFFE0.5%TE K
BAMEKR2%TES B °

LERBREERLE N&EE
f1iMerchants 5] 32 1 fi# 22 ¥ -
Bl ST EENEBA
10,000,000 7t R =& — A
FRNA=Z1TH A&£BEH
144,000,000 B HE=Z
—HEASNA=ZTHZEHE
6,856,000 BT E EFE ©

R=ZT—RF~A=+H &K
HEMERBERE T LR
BAERBRAR(THEEER]
BYE=F MBBIMEMA
7)) ZE 7K #713,670,000% 7T(=
= — PO 4 : 43,884,000/ 7t ) °
ZFIBHE AN $ #13,670,00078 7T
(ZZE—F : 22,782, ooo%fu)
EEAFMEHNZTESEL(ZE—NO
% 121,102,000 7t ) ° ,\,TAE
BE - WIREE AFE0.5% 5T B
EEAMER2%TES S -

R-ZE—HERA-_+NR"
7N & @ 81 AR B AL R 5] 32 AN AR 2
BB SABcENTeE
/22,782,000 7w N = T
—HAEXNA=ZTH AEEE
#149,112,0008 T HE-T
—MEXNA=ZtTHZEFFE
21,102,000 BT EEE# % ©
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For the year ended 30 June 2015

HEZ

33.

E—AFNA=THIFFE

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position and the

movements during the year were as follows:

%.Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
R A MR R R ZETHE S
B2 AR BHRATFNZBBHMT :

Revaluation Revaluation

of land and of intangible
building assets Total
B Bk
T REF BIEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TrET BT FET
At 1 July 2013 R=ZT—=FtH—H 28,631 8,665 37,296
Exchange realignment bE 5 = 3,346 1,013 4,359
Effect of a change in MR s o8
tax rate (1,275) (386) (1,661)
At 30 June 2014 RZE—NFEASA=1H 30,702 9,292 39,994
Exchange realignment PE 7% (2,370) (716) (3,086)
Effect of a change in tax FEREFH T E
rate (2,437) (738) (8,175)
Credited to consolidated s A4FA&1E2S
statement of profit ﬁ{ﬁiﬁﬂ&ﬁi‘%
or loss and other
comprehensive income (350) — (350)
At 30 June 2015 RZT—RFA=1H 25,545 7,838 33,383
At 30 June 2015, the Group has unused tax losses of R-E—REASA=1TH' ' A&EEH

approximately HK$25,174,000 (2014: HK$155,208,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of such tax losses
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Such

losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

AR B) A Bt 18 &5 18 49 25,174,000 7% 7T

—Z— Y4 : 155,208,000 7T ) A
FRYEHE SHAR A ] o BB AR 2 FR
FOATER - iR AT B A
RIBEFIEEE - B B8 ] &R 5
HEHE o
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34. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 34. BAERFE
Number
of shares Amount
BREE S8
Notes HK$'000
K FET
Ordinary share of BREE0.01BIT 2 L@k
HK$0.01 each
Authorised: AR
At 1 July 2013 R-_E—=F+HF—H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Increase on 5 February 2014 R-E—NE-BRH 2N (i) 40,000,000,000 400,000
At 30 June 2014 and RZZ—NFASA=Z+BER
30 June 2015 —ZT-RFA~A=TH 50,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEIRAR :
At 1 July 2013 RZE—=F+HF—H 3,887,753,400 38,878
Issue of shares upon placement REBRLE ZE1TRG (i) 1,260,000,000 12,600
Issue of shares BITH D 333,333,333 3,333
At 30 June 2014 RZZE—MESA=1+H 5,481,086,733 54,811
Issue of shares BITRAD (iii) 1,500,000,000 15,000
Issue of shares upon conversion of B Al R (E %
convertible bonds BITRD (iv) 2,700,000,000 27,000
At 30 June 2015 RZE—RF A=+H 9,681,086,733 96,811
Notes: Kia -
(i) On 5 February 2014, pursuant to ordinary resolution passed (i) R-ZZE—NWE_HAHRB KR

(if)

(iii)

at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company, the
authorised share capital of the Company was increased
from HK$100,000,000 to HK$500,000,000 by the creation
of an additional 40,000,000,000 new ordinary shares at a
par value of HK$0.01.

On 5 February 2014, the Company completed the
placement of 1,260,000,000 ordinary shares at an issue
price of HK$0.05 per ordinary share. The net proceed of
the placement was approximately HK$62,050,000 and
will be used for general working capital and the general
improvement of the Group’s liquidity position.

The Second CB was partially converted into 1,500,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company on 9 October 2014.

The Debt CB was partially converted into 2,700,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company on 14 November 2014.

All ordinary shares issued during the year rank pari passu
with the then existing ordinary shares in all aspects.

ARARIREIRREAE LA
BeeEBRAER BRIERX
40,000,000,000 % #F A% [ {& 0.01
BT ERBEK  NRRZEE
B% 78 B 100,000,000 7 JT 18 hn &=
500,000,000 7T °

(ii) RZE—WME-ARAB  XAT
ERIRBETESREBER0S
# 7T Bt & 1,260,000,000 f% & 3@
R BEESHEMBREFHELN
62,050,000 75 7T % F 1 — AR & 38
BeR—RESAEBZRBE
SR o

(iii) FE_NBRREFER_Z—NF
TANBHENEBRAEERARRZ
1,500,000,000 f% @A -

(iv) EREAIRRESER T —NF
+—ATHEBBHERERAR
2 2,700,000,000 A% & @A °

V) ERBTZRBEBRRAAES
MEEHRAEEBRREAAS
3% -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B 3R B

For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE - F-AFAA=HLEFE

34. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(Continued)

(a) The Group

(i)

(if)

(iii)

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and
movements therein are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Share premium — the application of the share
premium account is governed by applicable
regulations of the Cayman Islands.

Capital reserve — capital reserve represents
the waiver of amounts due to a shareholder.

Foreign currency translation reserve —
translation reserve is arising from the
translation of foreign currencies in overseas
subsidiaries from the functional currency to
the Group’s presentation currency.

Convertible bonds reserve — convertible
bonds reserve represents the unexercised
convertible bonds issued by the Company.

34. BAKFw@EE

(a)

TEE

(iii)

(iv)

AEBRFBZBER
EPNERBERRE
il 2 TH Y 25 3R DA R AR
BREDZEHRES -

Pt s E — B afE
ReRAXHERS
ERARGIEE -

BEAREE — EXNRE
ERREN—BRR

IR e

SNESTE L it — FE S
REEEBBREEI
Wi AR 25N (Thiae
E¥)EAREEENE
W o

AR ESRHEE — 7
BRESFEBEARD
BT 8T 2 R1TERA
BERES TR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=

For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—LE—hFNA=T1THIFE

34. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 34. BARfHE)
(Continued)
(b)  The Company (b) AAFH
Convertible
Contribution Share Capital bonds Accumulated
surplus premium reserve reserve losses Total
B:1
LN RiaE BARff EHfE ZiHE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
AL TAT AT AL TAT AL
(Note (i) (Note (i) (Note (iii))
(Hit() W) (i)
At1 July 2013, as previously ~ W=F-=FtF-H
stated (M E2F) 2201 1,132,593 6,510 —  (1312719)  (151415)
Effect of prior year adjustments ~ MEEEHZHE - - - - 18,445 18,445
At 1July 2013, as restated R=F-=F+A—A (L) 2201 1,132,593 6,510 —  (1,04274)  (132,970)
Total comprehensive expenses ~ AFE2 AR A
for the year - — - - (301,109) (301,109)
Issue of convertible bonds EATRARES - - — 193,500 = 193,500
Issue of shares ¥k - 56,117 — - — 56,117
Change in equity for the year AEEEREY — 56,117 — 193,500 (301,109) (51,492)
At 30 June 2014, as restated RZZ-WE~A=1H
(me5) 2201 1,188,710 6,510 193500 (1595,383)  (184,462)
At 1 July 2014, as previously RZE-ME+A—H
stated (EUEE) 2001 1,188,710 6,510 30500 (1,609,512) (41591)
Effect of prior year adjustments ~ \EEEREZE - - —  (157,000) 14,129 (142,871)
At 1 July 2014, as restated N=B-PELA-R(EES) 2201 1,188,710 6,510 193,500 (1595,383)  (184462)
Total comprehensive expense  AFR2ERAE
for the year — — — — (13,451) (13,451)
Issue of shares ¥k - 30,000 = = = 30,000
Issue of shares upon conversion  REER T AREFETRA
of convertible bonds — 54,000 - (81,000) — (27,000)
Change in equity for the year ~ AEEEREH = 84,000 = (81,000) (13451) (10.451)
At 30 June 2015 RZZ-R%/ A=1H 22,201 1,212,110 6,510 112500 (1,608,834) (194,913)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B 3R B

For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE - F-AFAA=HLEFE

34. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(Continued)

35.

(b)

The Company (Continued)

Notes:

)

(iif)

Contribution surplus — the contribution surplus
represents the excess of the fair value of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation over the nominal value of the shares
of the Company issued in exchange therefor.
Under the Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the
Cayman lIslands, the contributed surplus account
is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
under certain circumstances.

Capital reserve — capital reserve represents the
waiver of amounts due to a major shareholder.

Convertible bonds reserve — convertible bonds
reserve represents the unexercised convertible
bonds issued by the Company.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS RESERVE

34. BAKFw@EE

(b)

KDR(#E)

it -

(i)

(i)

(iii)

AR — MARSRE
TRAR & B S48 AT U RS I
RAAFEERRARR
BZENMBARMmMETL
BINEEMREEZRE © &
RASHBQRACE
—ZFEF) AR
B TER T ABA RS
R SRIARBIRER 5
I °

EARGE — BEAREE
AR B = EARIRNA o

AR ESFEE — AR
RESFREEREAR RN
TZARTEABREESS

35. ARRESFHE

HK$'000

FET

(Restated)

CE=))

At 1 July 2013 R-_ZE—=F+H—H —
Issue of convertible bonds and at 30 June  ZE{TRIMAMRES &

2014 RN_E—WFESA=+H 193,500

Conversion to shares a0 L5 (81,000)

At 30 June 2015 RZE—RFA~A=1H 112,500
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=

For the year ended 30 June 2015

BE—

35.

E—FFENA=FHILFE

CONVERTIBLE BONDS RESERVE
(Continued)
The principle terms of the convertible bond is as follows:

35. AIRRELHES

AR B2 EBIERT

Debt CB
B TRRES

Maturity date FEA A
Principal amount PN =
Interest rate A==

Conversion price EHAE
Conversion period it H

4 February 2016
- RF-HAMA
HK$193,500,000
193,500,000 7T
zero

HK$0.03

0.08 BT

5 February 2014 to
4 February 2016
—T-HWHF-ARHEZE
—E—RF_AWmAH

On 20 December 2013, the Company and Mr. Yeung
agreed to capitalise a debt owed by the Company to Mr.
Yeung (which had been novated from a subsidiary of the
Company) by issuing the Debt CB in the principal amount
of HK$193,500,000 to Mr. Yeung (please refer to the
circular of the Company dated 17 January 2014 for further
details). As of 30 June 2015, HK$112,500,000 of the Debt
CB was outstanding.

The Debt CB is non-redeemable and shall be converted
into ordinary share capital of the Company. The Debt CB
is accordingly classified as equity in the consolidated
financial statements of the Company.

Mr. Yeung is the largest shareholder at present, holding
27.89% of the Company’s entire issued share capital. The
existing Directors note that Mr. Yeung was convicted of
money laundering offences in March 2014 and, due to a
restraint order on his assets issued by the Department
of Justice of Hong Kong (“DOJ”), he is prohibited from
dealing with the Debt CB and his shares in the Company.
On 24 September 2014, the DOJ confirmed that they will
not raise any objection to the restructuring that took place
under the Debt Capitalisation Agreement. On 14 August
2015, Mr. Yeung obtained leave of the Hong Kong Court
of Final Appeal to appeal his conviction and the appeal is
scheduled to be heard on 31 May 2016.

—T—=%+_A=+H " ARQF
G SE AR E - BBAIG L AEEITA
& %8 193,500,000 78 7T 2 fE 15 Al 32 A%
5 ARMEARRBIBER(TDEE R
AAR—HMHBRAR) ZEE(EA
HER2HARRESA-_T—NF
—A+EBZE®) RZE—AHF
ANA=1+H EBUBRKESFETE
112,500,000 /BT EARITE ©

WH&E%

BB ES TR EE - AR

RERFZ EBBBA o EB AR

1%%;%lﬂﬁ#$ Az iR M B RET
DR ES o

BRERRNRARE  HE84A2Q7
EHMEBEITRAZ27.89% - HIEFE
IR BAER-_ZT—NFE=ZA
WHEREREZKY  BERARSE
B Al ([ A] ) ¥ H & 2= 2 Rl
2 HEHEIEEEBR I RKRES
RERARRBZBD - BERAINKRZZE
—MENA -+ EER  HETE
HMEBEEERN L HZETZEEAS
Eﬁﬁ&%GW:?*£¢AH+E
B BEEEERESHAOES

i&$mi$'ﬁ@iﬁﬁﬁ%fg
—ANFRA=T—HETKM °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B 3R B

For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—F—AFNA=T1THIFE

36. COMMITMENTS 36. &IE
Operating lease arrangements REBPHORH
The Group as lessee A EEERBAFEA
The Group leases certain premises and motor vehicles REERBECEHOTHHEESTY
under operating lease arrangements. Leases are ¥RAE - HERTEHANTF2E99
negotiated for a term ranging from two to ninety nine years. F o AL B W ERNTEE M) B
The Group does not have an option to purchase the leased BEHEEEZRERE - RIEHR -
assets at the expiry of the lease period. At the end of the RE BRI AT BEH A A 2 R K
reporting period, the Group’s total future minimum lease HIEMECEENT :
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as
follows:
2015 2014
—E-EF —E—mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —FR 3,761 3,738
After one year but within five years —FERERAEFA 6,404 6,818
After five years FaRGEEE] 79,584 85,920
89,749 96,476
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=

For the year ended 30 June 2015
B2 _F A FANA=THIEFE

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period,

the Group had the

following contingent liabilities:

U]

(i)

Player transfer costs

Under the terms of certain contracts with other
football clubs in respect of the player transfers,
additional player transfer cost would become
payable if certain specific conditions are met.
The maximum amount not provided that could be
payable in respect of the transfers up to 30 June
2015 was approximately HK$9,328,000 (equivalent
to GBP765,000). At the end of the reporting period
and up to the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements, none of these amounts have
crystallised.

Claim from former directors against the Company
(a) Hong Kong High Court Action No. 1099 of
2013 (“HCA 1099/2013”)

On 10 May 2013, Mr.
Lee”),
filed a claim with the Labour Tribunal of

Lee Yiu Tung (“Mr.
a former director of the Company,

Hong Kong against the Company for unpaid
wages, wages in lieu of notice and expenses
paid by him on behalf of the Company of
approximately HK$1,484,000. The Company
made a counterclaim against Mr. Lee on
8 October 2013 in respect of wages paid
to him for the months from July to October
2012 up to the amount of HK$240,000 and
reimbursement of expenses paid to him
during 2010 to 2012 totaling HK$2,000,000
for business and projects not related to the
Company. On 4 June 2013, both parties
agreed that the case would be transferred to
the High Court.

37.

HAREE
R|Emk KEEALTFAAR

(E

(M)

(if)

REEEEH
BEHMIKREEHE IR E]
SN2 ETEHNZ AT WA
é%¥%ih#~mﬁﬁﬁ
SNREBEER - #EZ
—RFEANA=+THA8E ﬁﬁﬁ
FE M 8 R B 2 & = KB
#) /9,328,000 JT(HH & 1
765,000 & £ ) o PRI EHAK
RBEZSGRAVBREIE
HE - 2SR EREETR

U:U'—h

MEBRARAFRERR

(a ZEBEBERFFRA=
F — = F F1099%
(HCA 1099/2013./)
R-ZTE—ZFRA+
= RPN = S >
BREE(TZxE])
MBS EEHEIR
HEEHARQE 2R
RBERXRH - RAE
Me RRARQ A XA
2 [ X #91,484,000
BILe RARIKR=ZF
—=F+ANBRAZE
FEREIREBER B
H-_T——F#t A&
TABBERZLEEZ
T & 1= 240,000
TR —FFH
ZE-—FRAHERN
YNGIE: 377 ol 9N
BEEfNEhREZRAY
+ # A& 2,000,000
BT RZT—=4F
NAWB: 252
ERRHGERAREE
BT HR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B 3R B

For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—F—AFNA=T1THIFE

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES Continued)

(i) Claim from former directors against the Company

(a)

(b)

Hong Kong High Court Action No. 1099 of
2013 (“HCA 1099/2013”) (Continued)

At a Case Management Conference (“CMC”)
was held on 16 September 2015 at the High
Court, the Court directed that the CMC be
adjourned to 27 April 2016. In the meantime,
the Company was ordered to provide its list
of documents within 8 weeks and the parties
ordered to exchange witness statements
within 6 months.

Hong Kong High Court Action No. 1355 of
2015 (“HCA 1355/2015”)

Reference is made to the announcement
of the Company dated 25 March 2015 in
relation to the four demand notices sent by
Mr. Pannu, a former executive director of the
Company, to the Company.

Subsequent to the demand notice, on 11 May
2015, Mr. Pannu filed a claim with the Labour
Tribunal of Hong Kong against the Company
for a sum of HK$3,397,609.68 on the grounds
constructive dismissal under the Employment
Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the laws of Hong
Kong) dismissal by reason of redundancy,
failure to grant an annual leave, failure to pay
wages, failure to pay of year payment.

37. BREE®)
(i) WEEAAATREERE)

@

(b)

EEBERFFL=
ZF — = F F1099%
(THCA 1099/2013])
(#)

R=ZZTE—RAFNA
TARBESFERB
MreREEEES
((RHEBEEEE ]
EERGLSRGEE
BEeafrzE_%
—A"EmA=Z+E
B RE- - AQaH
MLESHARNIEH#E
NHEBE S ARER
WL EeEARR

BEAET °

EEEEREFRA=
T — 7 F F1355%
(THCA 1355/2015)
EFURARNAB R
T—RF=A=+h
BRZEZA M AR
B AR R AMERT
# £ Pannu sk &£ [ A
NEIEHMEG E KB
A o

REHERBHE
Pannuft &£ R = &
—hAFRA+T—HMA
BEBLEBERHER D
HEARAF ZHR
VA 58 i M B R (R B
EARGI(E B ED %
57 %) FE10A )
UNECIESA=NIE$8:/
REEIREFR - KRaE
TNEE - ReEXH
FHR/B EREG
3,397,609.68 T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=

For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—LE—hFNA=T1THIFE

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES continued) 37. IAREE @
(i)  Claim from former directors against the Company (i) AMEBEEATREBEER
(Continued) (%)

Hong Kong High Court Action No. 1355 of
2015 (“HCA 1355/2015”) (Continued)

The Receivers attended an interview with
an officer of the Labour Tribunal of Hong
Kong on 22 May 2015 and, in view of the
complexity of matters involved, requested
the Labour Tribunal to transfer the case to
the High Court of Hong Kong. The approval
for the transfer to the High Court of Hong
Kong was granted on 18 June 2015 and
the Company and Mr. Pannu subsequently
agreed directions for the filing of pleadings.

On 18 August 2015, the Company received
a summons from Mr. Pannu seeking leave of
the Court to amend his Statement of Claim
by adding a new cause of action. In the
Amended Statement of Claim, (which was
filed and served on 22 September 2015), Mr.
Pannu claims the following relief against the
Company on the following:

()

BEEBEREFFA=
F — 7 F F1355%;
([HCA 1355/2015)
(&)
BEBEAR_Z—REF
AAZ+=ZHEAFE
BEEHEN—BE
BETEH MER
FiwEE 2 BN
EEATRREESE
HEBREERES
mEER c RERZ
T-—RAFA~A+N\H
BEERZESSE
EBr mMA R A K
Pannu st £ BE 12 B
ERZME ZZHE -

R—ZZE—RHF/N\A
+NAB ARaE k3
Pannust £ 2 Eil <
Ak FRORBT AL E B
MEBERRME - A
MA—1&EFaFREA -
RIELE ] ) R R R
ME(R=_Z—AFh
A-t+-_HBHBEEZ
H) - Pannu % 4§t 4
ARAERE TR -

1. Damages including special, 1. ®woE E (E
aggravated and exemplary damages Pannu 7t 4 #&
for libel in respect of termination EARRIES
of appointment of Mr. Pannu’s as MBS FRATIR
managing director and chief executive BE (AR R
officer of the Company as announced W ZE—POF
in the Company’s announcement on +=—A+HAH

15 December 2014;

2. HK$3,423,342.46 for outstanding
wages, bonus payments, long service

T 3% 19 2 5 BT
i) B E R
B BHEEHE
R F &% B0 1 7R
- mERER
TR E R
Be

2. RSB -
e REBR

payment and payment in lieu of e R ARIK

untaken leave; RE®HESD
3,423,342.46
BT
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37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES Continued)

Claim from former directors against the Company
(Continued)

Hong Kong High Court Action No. 1355 of
2015 (“HCA 1355/2015”) (Continued)

3. Interest of 8% per annum on the
outstanding amount of wages
pursuant to section 25A of the
Employment Ordinance;

4. Further, or alternatively, interest on
such sums and at such rates as the
Court shall think fit pursuant to the
High Court Ordinance; and

5. Costs.

The Receivers have obtained legal advice
in respect of the merits of the case and they
intend to defend all the claims of Mr. Pannu.
Separately, the Receivers intend to make a
number of counter-claims against Mr. Pannu
for the breach of duties while Mr. Pannu
was serving as (i) the executive director of
the Company and the BCFC and (ii) Vice/
Acting Chairman of BCFC. The claims made
against Mr. Pannu will, however, be brought
in HCA 1590/2015 (see Note 39 below) and,
given the overlapping issues, it is likely that
an application will be made in due course to
consolidate HCA 1355/2015 (see above) with
HCA 1590/2015.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B 3R B

For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—F—AFNA=T1THIFE

37. REE @)

(i)

AEBAARQBRHAR
(%)
b) FEBEREFL=

F — 7 F F1355%
(THCA 1355/2015/)
(%)

3. 1R 15 1 1 15 3
5 25A 15 1% &
T E
H18% F 8

4 AN - HIER
RE - AR
BE&SER
GRPIRRE @&
& 7R BRI K
AFERMRE
K

5. AR o

ZEACDREHAIE
BEREEER I
B B BtPannut &£
ZEHBERETMN
o UbAN - BB AR
& ¥ Pannu 5t & A &
fE(i)A& 2 7 XBCFC
# 17 & = & (ii)BCFC
Bl /ST EFEHRE
RIEEEEZITARE
P EZ2ERB R E
8 ¥ Pannut &£ IR
0 Z B R # LAHCA
1590/2015 (R T X
B 7£39) K 2 14 5% 12
i mMAREEER
EE - ARAHBR
i E R R PR B HCA
1355/2015 (R, k£ x )
B HCA 1590/2015&
BHRIE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=

For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—LE—hFNA=T1THIFE

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES continued)

(iii)

China Energy

On 19 March 2015, the Receivers received a
demand letter dated 19 March 2015 from the
legal representative of China Energy demanding
an immediate repayment by the Company of an
aggregate sum of an outstanding principal of
HK$22,782,545 and interest of HK$24,583,683
accrued up to 31 December 2014 together with
further interest accrued up-to actual repayment
date, as borrowed and owned by the Company not
later than 1 April 2015.

The Receivers held several discussions with
China Energy who eventually agreed to forego
the interest due on their respective debts on the
condition that 40% of the principal amount was to
be paid by early June 2015 and the balance 60%
of the principal amount due by 31 August 2015.
The Receivers sought leave of the High Court of
Hong Kong to enter into a deed of settlement with
China Energy on 26 May 2015 and the deed of
settlement was signed on 28 May 2015. Using the
funding obtained from Trillion Trophy, the Receivers
remitted to China Energy the first instalment in
the sum of HK$9,113,018 on 1 June 2015 and the
second instalment in the sum of HK$13,669,527 on
1 September 2015.

37. REE @)

(iii)

P EIREIR
R=Z—RAF=A+NB &
EAREPEERAEREE
HESA-S—RF=AtAI
B2 ZRKEH - B ERARRD
AIAETNER_ZT—RAFHA
—HAIREEA QBB A RS
RZAKREEARE 22,782,545
BT AREFEZZT— Y
F+_A=+t—RHZHE
24,583,683 B Lk At 2 E
BEXBHZEMFIS o

BE AP EGEREST T 2UR
B HRERABNERS
BHEZHNE - GERE_ZE
—HFERNAVZAMER40%
A& FEr60% AT T
—RFNAR=+—HBZAE
B -BEBARZZT-—AFA
A=+ RXBEREBSEER
BB BB RE T MRS -
WARZZTE—RAFRAA=ZTN
BEITMRBE EBEALH
B Trillion Trophy & K &
& RZE—RAF~A—H
MAPBEERELT® —$%
189,113,018/87L * WHR=ZF
—hAFNA—HELTE=%
FXIF 13,669,527 AT °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B 3R B

For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—F—AFNA=T1THIFE

38. RELATED PARTY AND CONTINUING

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(a)

38. BEMAIRBERERS

In addition to a related party balances detailed in (a) MG E B BHRE LM E24 &
the consolidated financial statements and Notes 309 Bl &F it 2 BE B 5 4 &R
24 and 30, respectively, the Group entered into the AN A ARE B RS
following significant transactions with related parties (EL s TR SRR EmAR
during the year, some of which are also deemed to BTN R BEEEA L) T IA
be connected parties pursuant to the Listing Rules: TEARS :
2015 2014
—E-hfF —Z O
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mzt FET FAET
(Restated)
(f&=%)
Interest paid to iMerchants 21+ iMerchants Z 7 & (i) — 2,444
Interest paid on amounts due B HEAEREZENFE
to Mr. Yeung (i) — 4,867
Consultancy fees paid to BEfEZEME
Asia Rays (iii) 1,200 6,124
Rental expenses paid to EffEEzHeRY
Asia Rays (iv) — 441
Operating cost paid to 21 Birmingham City
Birmingham City Ladies Ladies Football Club
Football Club Limited Limited ([ BC Ladies
(“BC Ladies FC”) FC|) Z #& &R (v) 1,691 1,427
Commission paid to SPLUX B4 SPLUX Company
Company Limited (“Splux”) Limited ([Splux]) 2f&  (vii) — 1,500
Rental expenses for motor MFFEBEREE 2 TBEN
vehicle with cross-border eMEMERAT ZHE
license plate paid to Life 53
Profit Asia Limited (viii) — 767
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=

For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—LE—hFNA=T1THIFE

38. RELATED PARTY AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(a) (Continued)

Notes:

)

(iii)

iMerchants is a subsidiary of Chinese Energy
Holdings Limited of which Mr. Yau Yan Ming,
Raymond, a former independent non-executive
director of the Company and Mr. Chan Wai Keung,
a former non-executive director of the Company
are both executive directors of Chinese Energy
Holdings Limited.

As mentioned in Note 32 of this consolidated
financial statements, a deed of settlement was
entered into with iMerchants. the accrued interest
of HK$6,856,000 was waived.

The interest rate on the amounts due to Mr. Yeung
was based on terms agreed among the parties.

Peter Pannu, a former executive Director of the
Company was removed on 9 March 2015, has
beneficial interests in Asia Rays. On 22 September
2009, the Group entered into the Consultancy
Agreement with Asia Rays for the provision of
consultancy services to Group on a monthly fee
of HK$310,000 tax-free for a term of five years
commencing from 1 October 2009 and expiring
on 30 September 2014. The consultancy was
amended to GBP65,000 per month commencing
from 1 July 2011 as per the amendment letter
dated 28 July 2011. On 28 December 2011, the
Group entered into a deed of variation with Asia
Rays for the provision of consultancy services to
the Group at a monthly fee of HK$400,000 per
month commencing from 1 January 2012. Details of
the terms of the Consultancy Agreement are set in
the announcement of the Company dated 23 April
2013.

(i)

(if)

(iii)
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R B 3R B

For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—F—AFNA=T1THIFE

38. RELATED PARTY AND CON

TINUING

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(a) (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

During the year ended 30 June 2015,
consultancy fees of approximately HK$1,200,000
(2014: HK$4,800,000), housing allowance of
approximately HK$Nil (2014: HK$800,000) and
reimbursements of tax of approximately HK$Nil
(2014: HK$524,000) were paid to Asia Rays.

On 5 March 2011, BCFC entered into a Rental and
Management Agreement (the “Rental Agreement”)
with Asia Rays, being the landlord of an office
premise in Hong Kong, for a period of 3 years
commencing from 1 March 2011 to 28 February
2014 at a monthly rent of GBP5,000. Asia Rays is
wholly owned and controlled by Mr. Peter Pannu.
Approximately HK$441,000 has been paid to Asia
Rays during the financial year ended 30 June 2014.
The Rental Agreement is expired on 28 February
2014 and has not been renewed.

Mr. Peter Pannu, has beneficial interests in BC
Ladies FC.

In 2014, Splux, a private company incorporated
in Hong Kong with limited liability, directly and
wholly owned by Mr. Ma Shui Cheong (“Mr. Ma”)
who is an executive Director of the Company for
the period from 7 December 2012 to 9 March
2015, entered into a finder’'s agreement with the
Company. Pursuant to the finder's agreement, the
Company pays commission to Splux for the efforts
of Mr. Ma to facilitate and secure the provision
of a loan agreement made between U-Continent
and the Company for loan to the Company.
Approximately HK$1,900,000 was reported as
amount paid to Splux during the financial year
ended 30 June 2014. Upon the investigation by
the management, approximately HK$900,000 was
revealed as suspected misappropriation by the
former employee of the Company.

Ms. Wang Li Fei, having beneficial interests in Life
Profit Asia Limited, is a domestic partner of Mr.
Yeung, a substantial shareholder of the Company.
The motor vehicle agreement was terminated on 9
December 2014.

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=

For the year ended 30 June 2015
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38. RELATED PARTY AND CONTINUING 38. B A RIGERERS w)

39.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions
The related party transactions in respect of
consultancy fee paid to Asia Rays under note (iii)
above constitute continuing connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules are provided on pages 10 to 12 of this
Report.

(c) Key management compensation
The key management personnel of the Group
comprises the directors of the Company only.
Details of compensation of directors are included in
Note 13.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Other than disclosed elsewhere in this Report, the Group
has the following events after the reporting period:

Discharge Application

39.
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At
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REHEEE
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SEZHERRERWT ¢

R BRER

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company BEHRAARAIR_ZE—HF=A
dated 16 March 2015 in relation to the summons issued +RNBFREZAM - ARERAQF]
against the Receivers by the Company seeking to, amongst MEEABRLERSK  SR(HF

other things, discharge or vary the Receivership Order and
the announcement of the Company dated 25 March 2015
in relation to the summons issued against the Receivers by
Mr. Yeung seeking to discharge or vary the Receivership
Order (the “Discharge Application”).

At the first hearing of the Discharge Application on 1
April 2015, the High Court of Hong Kong directed that to
be adjourned to 31 July 2015 and, in the meantime, be
advertised in order that any interested shareholder wishing
to participate could apply to intervene in the adjourned
hearing.
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39.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (Continued)

Discharge Application (Continued)

On 24 July 2015, a group of minority shareholders of the
Company issued a summons to intervene in the hearing
and seeking an order that the Receivers continue in office
until resumption of trading of shares in the Company on
the Stock Exchange, or until further order (the “Minority
Application”).

The adjourned hearing on the Discharge Application was
heard on 31 July 2015 together with the hearing of the
Minority Application. In its decision handed down on 28
August 2015, the High Court of Hong Kong ordered that
the Receivership Order to be continued, until the trading
of the shares of the Company is resumed on the Stock
Exchange or until further order (the “28 August Decision”).

By way of a summons dated 9 September 2015, Mr. Yeung
applied to the High Court of Hong Kong for leave to appeal
the 28 August Decision. The leave application will be heard
(for directions only) on 12 October 2015.

Hong Kong High Court Action No. 1590 of 2015 (“HCA
1590/2015”)

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 15 July 2015 in which it was announced that the
Company and BCFC (as joint plaintiffs) had commenced
legal proceedings against Mr. Yeung, Asia Rays and
Amazing Top in the High Court of Hong Kong on 13 July
2015 claiming for loss and damages suffered by the Group
as a result of Mr. Yeung's breaches of fiduciary duties.

On 5 August 2015, Mr. Yeung requested the Company to
provide further and better particulars of the Statement of
Claim before providing his defence. The Company agreed
to answer one of the requests, which was duly provided
on 14 September 2015. Mr. Yeung is required to file his
defence until 28 days after the decision from the Court on
the Company’s application to add Mr. Peter Pannu as the
4th defendant is handed down.

39.

WEHREE 2)

FRERER R (AE)
RZZ-—AFtA-+TWEA - XAF
Mo LPBEREHERSKNAR
Al UBRBSEEALERT B
EAXARBRMORBRIIREER TR
HE— TS ((DHRRPE]) °

BRI A s 2 MREC AR D &
RERBBFZRAR - ZE—HF L H
=t+—H&T -R-_F—"FN\A
“tNARBHZERD  BERFTE
REEXESEBELER  EEAR
BRI 32 P IRE B B S fE s —
T RLETNAZTNABRR]) -

BEEABSHR-Z-—HFNAANR
ZEALH]K - MBERREERBHL
NAZTNBEREFZFA - £5F
HERR-_ZE—RF+A T BT
R (EFHES]) ©

EEERREHRA-S—HEFHE
1590 %% (HCA 1590/2015 )

EWRRAARTBHAZT —RF L
BT+HRBZAM EFEMARAEHE
BCFC ({EAXRRE)EN=2—H
FLtA+=HREERZ AR ML
4 Yt 3 N Amazing Top & F A2
BF REASEEEREZEELE
AEBERZ 2BARESREAR -

R=_E—RAFNARHB  BEEBK
ARaRMERERFRRERNHE—P5F
1B AEERZIIEE - X2RREE
EIEHEA—IFFEK WER=_ZF—H
FNATHEBZARHBEEE - 15
FEBERER TEEBARRIRER
JiPeter Pannu 7t 4 & 55 PO 4% & A #
Rik 28 HRIERTIFE ©

BIRMINGHAM INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED (RECEIVERS APPOINTED) IR IR HIZRBR AR (EZEEEA)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=

For the year ended 30 June 2015

BE—

39.

E—FFENA=FHILFE

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (Continued)

Hong Kong High Court Action No. 1590 of 2015 (“HCA
1590/2015”) (Continued)

On 25 September 2015, the Company filed an application
with the Court to add Mr. Peter Pannu as the 4th Defendant
in the action and to amend the Statement of Claim. In the
meantime, it has been agreed by consent that Asia Rays
and Amazing Top do not need to file their defence until 42
days after the High Court of Hong Kong has given leave to
the Company to add Mr. Peter Pannu as a defendant.

Hong Kong High Court Action No. 1648/2015

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 21 July 2015 in which it was announced that
the Company had instituted legal proceedings against
U-Continent in connection with alleged misrepresentations
made by U-Continent in the Agreements under which
U-Continent acquired a total of HK$175,000,000 of
convertible bonds in the Company. By a letter to
U-Continent dated 20 July 2015, the Company rescinded
the Agreements and on 21 July 2015 issued a writ of
summons against U-Continent from the High Court of
Hong Kong claiming for loss and damages suffered by the
Company as a result of the misrepresentations.

The writ has been sent to U-Continent and its solicitors
for their information, however, it has not yet been formally
served pending leave from the High Court of Hong Kong to
serve it out of the jurisdiction.

39.
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For the year ended 30 June 2015
BE=—F—AFNA=T1THIFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY

40. AT ZBBRR R

30 June 30 June 1 July
2015 2014 2013
—E-HF —T—NmFE —T—=F
AA=+H ~A=T1H +A—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEr FET
Notes (Restated) (Restated)
Kz (sE75) (1e=%1))
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment 473 - BiE k& 553 2,134 722
553 2,134 722
Current assets REEE
Deposits, prepayments and e BRRIEBRAME
other receivables U
NIE 2,018 8,183 681
Amounts due from & U Ff B R B R IE
subsidiaries 116,445 89,796 45,376
Amounts due from related JE W A 2 R B FRIE
companies — 320 320
Cash held at non-bank RIERITE BB ATIF IR
financial institutions & 1 1 1
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBERE 2,296 34,502 3,868
120,760 127,754 50,246
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and other payables — FE&HFRIE & £ b f& (- F08 24,842 33,054 29,506
Amounts due to subsidiaries  FEfTHIB A BFIE 6,820 6,820 6,812
Amounts due to former e RIEE IR
directors 10,769 10,780 5,198
Borrowings =3¢ 133,670 208,885 97,418
Amounts due to directors R ESEHRIA = = 544
176,101 259,539 139,478
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (55,341) (131,785) (89,232)
Total assets less current EEHEBERABER
liabilities (54,788)  (129,651) (88,510)
BIRMINGHAM INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED (RECEIVERS APPOINTED) {HFASIIREBKIEIRER A (EZTHEEA)
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For the year ended 30 June 2015
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY(Com/nued)

40. RATFZBBERRET 2

30 June 30 June 1 July
2015 2014 2013
—E-RF —T-mN§g —T-=F
AA=+H NA=1H +HA—H
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$ 000
FAET FET FET
Notes (Restated) (Restated)
izt C==27)) €27
Non-current liability FRBERE
Borrowings faE 43,314 — —
Amounts due to directors ERNESHIE — — 5,582
43,314 = 5,582
NET LIABILITIES 8EFE (98,102) (129,651) (94,092)
Capital and reserves EXRRFEE
Share capital fg 7 34 96,811 54,811 38,878
Reserves i 34 (194,913) (184,462) (132,970)
CAPITAL DEFICIENCY =N (98,102) (129,651) (94,092)
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LFEMBRE

For the For the For the For the For the
year year year year year
ended ended ended ended ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
“E-Rf W =Z2—=Ff = —T——F
~B=1+H ~NA=1+AH ~NAZ=t+H ~NAZ=1H ~NAZ=1+H
Result 4 HEE EFE IFFE HEFE HFE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET S FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(/m&7) (e55)
Turnover R 253,584 258,227 294,497 489,887 781,366
(Loss) profit before R (B8 ) m Al
taxation (7,879) (139,549) (107,087) 143,688 (784,602)
Income tax (expense)  FT{3#(FA%)EE
credit 3,471 (21,032) 4,944 — 153,783
(Loss) profit for the KEE
year (B8) & (4,408) (160,581) (102,143) 143,688 (630,819)
Attributable to: FE1G
Owners of the AAREAA
Company (4,161) (157,430) (100,315) 136,911 (612,054)
Non-controlling FEER R
interests (247) (3,151) (1,828) 6,777 (18,765)
(4,408) (160,581) (102,143) 143,688 (630,819)
At 30 June
RAA=1H
Assets and liabilities BE#ZE 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-HF —ET@mOF —ZT-=F —E-CF —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&r FET F&T FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(/&%) (s55)
Total assets BERBE 404,085 526,392 464,961 579,136 627,330
Total liabilities BEEE (357,888) (504,083) (545,785) (557,502) (749,695)
Shareholder’s fund BREE 46,197 22,309 (80,824) 21,634 (122,365)
Total equity [Eh T AARE
attributable to:
Owners of the ZN/NEIET 2N
Company 43,274 18,577 (81,084) 19,535 (117,677)
Non-controlling SRR A
interests 2,923 3,732 260 2,099 (4,688)
46,197 22,309 (80,824) 21,634 (122,365)
BIRMINGHAM INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED (RECEIVERS APPOINTED) {HFASIIREBKIEIRER A (EZTHEEA)
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